
   

 
 

  99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.855.3913    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

 
 
 

New Albany Planning Commission Meeting Amended Agenda 
Wednesday, January 21, 2026, 7:00 p.m. 

Members of the public must attend the meeting in-person to participate and provide comments at 
New Albany Village Hall at 99 West Main Street. The meeting will be streamed for viewing 
purposes only via the city website at https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/ 

I. Call to order 
 

II. Roll call 
 

III. Action on minutes:  December 15, 2025 
   

IV. Additions or corrections to the agenda 
Administration of oath to all witnesses/applicants/staff who plan to speak regarding an 
application on tonight’s agenda.  “Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but the 
truth.” 

 
V.  Hearing of visitors for items not on tonight's agenda 
 
VI. Cases:  
 

ZC-80-2025 Fire Station Rezoning 
Request for a zoning change from Limited General Employment (L-GE) to Community 
Facilities (CF) to allow for a proposed fire station on 6.350+/- acres of land generally 
located at the northwest intersection of State Route 605 and New Albany Road East 
(Parcel ID: portion of 222-005258). 
Applicant: Schorr Architects c/o Nathan Gammella 
Presented by Sierra Saumenig 
 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
ZC-80-2025. 
 
Motion of approval for application ZC-80-2025 based on the findings in the staff report, 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 
 
VAR-98-2025 7108 Armscote End Pool Setback Variance 
Request for a variance from the West Nine 2 Zoning Text, Subarea C (6)(d)(vii), to 
reduce the required pool setback from any property line at 7108 Armscote End (PID: 
222-004853). 
Applicant: Steve Kidwell  
Presented by Kylie Blackburn 
 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
VAR-98-2025. 
 
Motion of approval for application VAR-98-2025 based on the findings in the staff report, 
with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 

https://newalbanyohio.org/answers/streaming-meetings/


   

 
 

  99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.855.3913    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

 
FDP-97-2025 CME Credit Union FDP Extension 
Request to extend approval of the final development plan for a CME Credit Union on 
2.03+/- acres generally located at the intersection of Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road 
(PID: 093-106512-00.011). 
Applicant: Tom Newcomb 
Presented by Lauren Sauter 
 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
FDP-97-2025. 
 
Motion of approval for application FDP-97-2025 based on the findings in the staff 
report, with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 

 
 
CU-104-2025 The Courtyards at Haines Creek Model Home Conditional Use 
Request for conditional use approval of a model home on lot 102 for The Courtyards at 
Haines Creek on 0.31+/- acres at 5535 Wooster Drive (PID: 222-005486). 
 
Applicant: Kelly Fankhauser c/o Epcon Haines Creek, LLC  
Presented by Jay Henderson 
 
Motion of acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  
CU-104-2025. 
 
Motion of approval for application CU-104-2025 based on the findings in the staff 
report, with the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 

 
VII. Other business 
 
VIII. Poll members for comment 

 
IX. Adjournment 



   

 

25 1215 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  1 

 
 
 

New Albany Planning Commission 
Monday, December 15, 2025 Meeting Minutes - DRAFT 

 
I. Call to order 
The New Albany Planning Commission held a regular meeting on Monday, December 15, 2025 
in the New Albany Village Hall.  Chair Kirby called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. and asked 
to hear the roll. 

 
II. Roll call 
Those answering the roll: 
Mr. Schell   present 
Mr. Kirby   present 
Mr. Wallace   present 
Ms. Briggs   present 
Mr. Larsen   present 
Council Member Wiltrout present 
 
With all voting members present, the commission had a quorum to transact business. 
 
Staff members present:  Law Director Albrecht, Planner I Henderson, Planner II Saumenig, 
Development Engineer Wood, Deputy Clerk Madriguera. 

 
III. Action on minutes:  December 1, 2025 
Chair Kirby made the following correction to the minutes.  On page three, condition seven for 
ZC-78-2025 should read as follows: 
 7. Parking should go no further east than the east face of the existing accessory structure. 
 
Commissioner Wallace made the following additional corrections to the minutes: 
 On page four it was Commissioner Wallace who seconded the motion to approve ZC-78-
 2025. 
 
 On page four, Commissioner Wallace’s explanation for his no vote should read as 
 follows: 
  
  Commissioner Wallace explained that he voted no because he did not find that  
  the request meets the Duncan requirements; and the request is not compatible  
  with adjacent uses.  He further found that although conditions of approval are not 
  unusual, the seven conditions imposed on an application like this one   
  demonstrate that the request is unsuitable at this time. 
  
 On page six, in the third paragraph attributed to Mr. Rubey, the word “eminent,” should 
 be “imminent.” 
 
 On page six, in the second to last paragraph attributed to Mr. Rubey the time should be 
 9:30. 
 
 On pages five and seven regarding the modification to condition three on ZC-ZC-94-
 2025.  Condition three should be modified as follows: 



   

 

25 1215 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  2 

  3. Modified to reflect the following, The riparian corridor and wetlands will be  
  established subject to staff approval, and then staff will approve all trees   
  proposed for removal based on those areas that are established. 
 

   
IV. Additions or corrections to the agenda 
Deputy Clerk Madriguera congratulated Commissioner Schell on his recent election to the Plain 
Township Board of Trustees.  Plain Township is fortunate to have him, and their good fortune is 
New Albany’s loss.  Hans’ service has been exemplary and he will be missed.  

 
Council Member Wiltrout congratulated Commissioner Schell and stated that she has learned so 
much and feels that she has watched him shepherd the commission through many difficult 
decisions.  The city council is grateful to Hans and has confidence that he will continue to provide 
great leadership for years to come.  She wished him the very best with Plain Township. 

 
Planner II Saumenig said that on behalf of the Planning Staff, Commissioner Schell was a 
pleasure to work with, his preparation and attendance was outstanding. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there were any further additions or corrections to the agenda.  Hearing 
none, he administered the oath and advised everyone that now was a good time to silence cell 
phones. 

 
 
V.  Hearing of visitors for items not on tonight's agenda 
Chair Kirby asked whether there were any visitors present who wished to speak on an item not on 
the agenda.  Hearing none, he introduced the first case and asked to hear from staff. 
 
VI. Cases:  
 
FDP-96-2025 Stack Data Center Final Development Plan 
Final Development Plan for a new Stack Infrastructure data center on the east side of Souder 
Road (PID: 222-005106). 
Applicant: Nicholas Ovens, EMHT  
Planner: Jay Henderson 

 
Planner I Henderson delivered the staff report. 
 
Chair Kirby asked abut the nature of the easement would it be for overhead lines, noting that 
overhead lines meand that ingress is not threatened and no new curb cuts are needed. 
 
Applicant and Attorney Aaron Underhill responded that the easement is for overhead lines.  He 
further spoke in support of the application.  He explained that this use and the design is consistent 
with existing uses and designs in the business park.  He stated that the applicants agreed with the 
conditions. 
 
Commissioner Schell asked if there had been comments from the neighbors. 
 
Planner I Henderson responded that there have been no comments from the neighbors. 
 
Commissioner Briggs confirmed that final development plans is a type of application that 
requires neighbor notification. 
 
Chair Kirby confirmed that the first condition did not diminish the amount of required regular 
street trees. 
 



   

 

25 1215 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  3 

Commissioner Larsen asked that the first condition be modified to require “a minimum of 27 
street trees,” rather a total of 27 street trees. 
 
Commissioner Briggs further discussed the site plan, the landscaping, the existing facility, the 
location of the proposed data center, and the adjacent properties. 
 
Commissioner Schell asked whether the trees on the site plan were existing or proposed. 
 
The applicant stated that it is a mixture. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was anyone from the public was present to comment on the 
application. 
 
Hearing none, Chair Kirby moved to accept the staff reports and related documents into the 
record for FDP-96-2025.  Commissioner Schell seconded the motion. 
 
Chair Kirby asked whether there was any discussion on the motion.  Hearing none, he asked to 
hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Kirby yes, Mr. Schell yes, Mr. Wallace yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Ms. Briggs yes.  
Having five yes votes, the motion passed and the staff reports and related documents were 
admitted into the record for FDP-96-2025. 
 
Commissioner Schell moved for approval of FDP-96-2025 based on the findings in the staff 
report with the conditions in the staff report and the fifth condition displayed on the screen (see 
below), and the first condition being modified to require a minimum of 27 street trees and noting 
that this does not apply to other areas of landscaping 
 
 5. The applicant works with staff during the permitting stages to determine proper 
 landscaping on the north side of the property due to the potential AEP easement. 
 
Chair Kirby seconded the motion.  He then asked if there was any discussion on the motion.  
Hearing none, he asked to hear the roll. 
 
Upon roll call:  Mr. Schell yes, Mr. Kirby yes, Mr. Wallace yes, Mr. Larsen yes, Ms. Briggs yes.  
Having five yes votes the motion passed and FDP-96-2025 was approved. 
 
The commission thanked the applicant and wished him good luck. 
 
VII. Other business 
Noting that there was no other business scheduled, Chair Kirby polled the members for comment. 
 
VIII. Poll members for comment 

 
Commissioner Briggs congratulated Commissioner Schell on his recent election.  She noted that 
he has been her seat mate on the commission and she thanked him for welcoming her and for 
showing her the ropes.  She stated that he will be missed. 
 
Commissioner Schell thanked each of the members of the commission.  He further thanked the 
staff members by name for their professionalism.  He remarked that the growth that the 
commission has seen in New Albany has been exponential.  He complimented the talent and the 
high level of professionalism on the board.  He considers the board lifelong friends. 
 
Commissioner Kirby echoed the sentiments shared.  He thanked Hans for his tremendous service 
and stated that he will be missed. 



   

 

25 1215 PC Meeting Minutes – DRAFT  4 

 
 
Commissioner Wallace added his congratulations stated that it was an absolute pleasure to work 
with Hans.  He further complimented Hans on all of his service beyond the commission, and 
stated that Hans will be missed 
 
Commissioner Larsen thanked Hans for all of his work on the board and for his service to New 
Albany.  It was an absolute pleasure to work with him.  Hans was leaving behind big shoes to fill, 
and he congratulated him for moving on to bigger service opportunities.  
 

 
IX. Adjournment 
Having no further business and having completed their agenda, Chair Kirby wished happy 
holidays to everyone and adjourned the December 15, 2025 regular meeting of the New Albany 
Planning Commission without objection at 7:23 p.m. 
 
Submitted by: Deputy Clerk Madriguera, Esq. 
 
Appendix 
FDP-96-2025 
 Staff Report 
 Record of Action 

 



PC 25 1215 Stack Data Center FDP-96-2025  1 of 6 

 
  
 
 

 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

December 15, 2025 Meeting 
 
 

STACK DATA CENTER 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 
 
LOCATION:  Generally located east on Souder Road and north of New Albany Road 

East (PID: 222-005106) 
APPLICANT:   Nicholas Ovens, EMHT 
REQUEST: Final Development Plan   
ZONING:   Infill Planned Unit Development (I-PUD): Souder East Research and 

Information District, subareas 2 & 3 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center 
APPLICATION: FDP-96-2025 
 
Review based on: Application materials received November 17 and November 26, 2025 
Staff report prepared by Jay Henderson, Planner I 
 
I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  
The application is for a final development plan for a proposed Stack Infrastructure data center 
generally located east on Souder Road and north of New Albany Road East on approximately 
16.81 acres. 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed and approved a variance to the development text to allow for 
an increase in building height from 45 feet to 55 feet on October 20, 2025 (VAR-72-2025). 
 
This site is located within subarea 2 & 3 of the Souder East Research and Information I-PUD 
zoning district, which was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on July 7, 2008 
(ZC-04-2008) and by City Council on July 15, 2008 (O-16-2008).  
 
II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 
The 16.81-acre property is currently undeveloped. The zoning text permits the uses included in 
the OCD (Office Campus District) zoning district found in the city code, including 
administrative, business, and professional offices, warehousing as an ancillary use, and data 
centers. The Nationwide data center is located east and south of the property, with vacant land to 
the north and Souder Road to the west. There are no residentially zoned properties immediately 
surrounding the site.  
 
III.  EVALUATION 
Staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations. 
Primary concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended 
action in underlined text. Planning Commission’s review authority is found under Chapter 1159. 
 
The Commission should consider, at a minimum, the following (per Section 1159.08): 

a. That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 
applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

b. That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan/Rocky 
Fork-Blacklick Accord or portion thereof as it may apply; 



PC 25 1215 Stack Data Center FDP-96-2025  2 of 6 

c. That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 
d. That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify 

the deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning 
Ordinance; 

e. Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 
f. Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such 

other facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density may not 
violate any contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in effect; 

g. Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness 
to existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

h. Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 
i. Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development 

periphery; 
j. Gross commercial building area; 
k. Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 
l. Spaces between buildings and open areas; 
m. Width of streets in the project; 
n. Setbacks from streets; 
o. Off-street parking and loading standards; 
p. The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi- phase  

developments; 
q. The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 
r. The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency’s 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit 

(if required);  
s. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 

 
It is also important to evaluate the PUD portion based on the purpose and intent. Per Section 
1159.02, PUD’s are intended to: 

a. Ensure that future growth and development occurs in general accordance with the 
Strategic Plan; 

b. Minimize adverse impacts of development on the environment by preserving native 
vegetation, wetlands and protected animal species to the greatest extent possible 

c. Increase and promote the use of pedestrian paths, bicycle routes and other non-vehicular 
modes of transportation; 

d. Result in a desirable environment with more amenities than would be possible through 
the strict application of the minimum commitment to standards of a standard zoning 
district; 

e. Provide for an efficient use of land, and public resources, resulting in co-location of 
harmonious uses to share facilities and services and a logical network of utilities and 
streets, thereby lowering public and private development costs; 

f. Foster the safe, efficient and economic use of land, transportation, public facilities and 
services; 

g. Encourage concentrated land use patterns which decrease the length of automobile 
travel, encourage public transportation, allow trip consolidation and encourage 
pedestrian circulation between land uses; 

h. Enhance the appearance of the land through preservation of natural features, the 
provision of underground utilities, where possible, and the provision of recreation areas 
and open space in excess of existing standards; 

i. Avoid the inappropriate development of lands and provide for adequate drainage and 
reduction of flood damage; 

j. Ensure a more rational and compatible relationship between residential and non-
residential uses for the mutual benefit of all; 

k. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding areas; and 
l. Provide for innovations in land development, especially for affordable housing and infill 

development. 



PC 25 1215 Stack Data Center FDP-96-2025  3 of 6 

 
Engage New Albany Strategic Plan Recommendations 
The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan lists the following development standards for the 
Employment Center future land use category: 

1. No freeway/pole signs are allowed. 
2. Heavy landscaping is necessary to buffer these uses from adjacent residential areas.  
3. Plan office buildings within the context of the areas, not just the site, including building 

heights within development parcels.  
4. Sites with multiple buildings should be well organized and clustered if possible.  
5. All office developments are encouraged to employ shared parking or be designed to 

accommodate it.  
6. All office developments should plan for regional stormwater management.  
7. All associated mechanical operations should be concealed from the public right-of-way 

and screened architecturally or with landscape in an appealing manner.  
8. Any periphery security should integrate with the existing landscape and maintain and 

enhance the character of the road.  
9. Combined curb cuts and cross-access easements are encouraged.  
10. The use of materials, colors, and textures to break up large-scale facades is required.  

 
A. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The applicant is proposing a two-story 330,000 +/- sq. ft. Stack Infrastructure data center 
on the 16.81 +/- acre site. The proposed use is appropriate for this location in the New 
Albany Business Park and is a permitted use in the zoning text.  

2. The Nationwide data center is located east and south of the property, with undeveloped 
land to the north and Souder Road to the west. There are no residentially zoned properties 
immediately surrounding the property.  

3.  C.O. 1165.06(b)(1) and (2) require an 8-foot-wide leisure trail to be installed along 
Souder Road, and it is being met as there is an existing 8-foot-wide leisure trail along the 
site’s frontage.  

4. Zoning text section III(E)(7) and IV(E)(7) states that the maximum lot coverage is 70% 
which includes all proposed pavement and buildings. The applicant states that the current 
lot coverage will be 47%; therefore, this requirement is met.  

5. The required setbacks for the property are listed below: 
 
Perimeter Boundary Required Setback Proposed Setback 

Souder Road  30-foot building and pavement 123’+/- building setback [meets code] 
60’+/- pavement setback [meets code] 

Eastern Boundary  20-foot pavement setback      
40-foot building setback 

80’+/- building setback [meets code] 
24’+/- pavement setback [meets code] 

Northern Boundary 15-foot building and pavement 395’+/- building setback [meets code]  
47’+/- pavement setback [meets code] 

Southern Boundary  15-foot building and pavement 143’+/- building setback [meets code] 
20’+/- pavement setback [meets code] 

 
6. The applicant indicates that the onsite stormwater will be conveyed to an onsite 

stormwater basin west of the site, adjacent to Souder Road, and an underground detention 
system located under the parking lot south of the building.  

 
B. Access, Loading, Parking 

1. Zoning text section IV(G)(3) permits a maximum of one full-service curb cut on Souder 
Road within this subarea, and any additional curb cuts must be reviewed and approved by 
the Planning Commission as part of a final development plan application. The applicant 
proposes one curb cut along Souder Road, thereby meeting this requirement.  

2.  C.O. section 1167.05(d)(18) states that one off-street parking space is required for each 
employee on the main shift. The applicant is required to provide 45 parking spaces and 



PC 25 1215 Stack Data Center FDP-96-2025  4 of 6 

has proposed 49 spaces, exceeding the requirement. The proposed parking spaces will be 
located along the southern façade of the building.  

3.  C.O. 1167.06(a)(3) requires 1 off-street loading space. The applicant is providing an off-
street loading space at the north end of the building.    

4.  Per C.O. 1167.03(a), the minimum parking space dimensions required are 9 feet wide and 
19 feet long, and the applicant is meeting this requirement. 

5.  Per C.O. 1167.03(a), the minimum maneuvering lane width size is 22 feet for this 
development type. The applicant proposes installing a 30-foot-wide drive aisle, providing 
circulation around the entire building; therefore, this requirement is being met.   

6.  Zoning text section IV(G)(4) states that bicycle parking shall be provided within 
reasonable distances of all buildings as approved as part of a final development plan 
application. The applicant is proposing a bike rack at the southwest corner of the 
property.  

 
C. Architectural Standards  

1. The zoning text requires that all building elevations visible from public rights-of-way 
receive consistent treatment in style, materials, and design so that no side appears of 
lesser visual quality. It also requires that comparable materials be used on every 
elevation. The proposed building meets these standards, as all materials are applied 
uniformly on all sides. Its contemporary design is also consistent with other data centers 
in the surrounding area. 

2. The zoning text permits the following exterior materials: 
• Traditional materials such as wood, stone, brick, and concrete. Contemporary 

materials such as metal, aluminum, glass, and hardiplank are also permitted. The text 
prohibits the use of mirrored or reflective glass and allows EIFS to be used for accent 
elements.  

• The applicant submitted proposed building elevations with materials identified. The 
plans show that metal will be the primary building material. ACM panels are used as 
accent elements on the south and west elevations.  

3. Zoning text section IV(F)(1) states that the maximum building height is 45 feet and that 
architectural elements such as parapets and monitors may exceed this height limitation. 
The applicant/property owner has recently received approval for a variance (VAR-72-
2025) to increase the maximum building height to 55 feet. The proposed building height 
is 54 feet 6 inches; thus, this requirement is being met.  

4. C.O. 1144.04(m) requires that all external mechanical equipment—including rooftop 
units—be fully screened from public roads and adjacent properties with materials that 
provide 100% opacity at ground level. The applicant proposes to meet this requirement 
by using fiber-reinforced panels or metal louvers to screen the rooftop equipment. An 
equipment yard is planned on the north side of the building, and it will be fully enclosed 
with insulated metal panels to ensure complete opaque screening.  
• In more recent employment center zoning texts, the Planning Commission has 

included additional requirements that such screening shall be provided for sight and 
sound for mechanical equipment. The applicant has proposed fully enclosed ground-
mounted and roof-mounted screening to provide full opacity. 

5. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(6) states that all visible elevations of a building must receive 
similar treatments in style, materials, and design so that no visible side is of a lesser 
character than any other. The applicant is using the same materials on all building 
elevations.  

6. Zoning text section IV(F)(3)(c) states that primary entrances to buildings shall be made 
sufficiently prominent so that they can be easily identified from a distance. The building 
is designed with an active and operable front door internal to the parking lot.   

7. C.O. 1171.05(b) states that all trash and garbage container systems must be screened, not 
be located in front yards, and meet the minimum required pavement setbacks. The 
applicant proposes installing a compactor situated on the north side of the lot in the 



PC 25 1215 Stack Data Center FDP-96-2025  5 of 6 

loading dock area with full screening on three sides and vegetative screening from the 
adjacent property to the north. 

 
D. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  

1. Per C.O. 1171.05(e), a minimum of one tree per 5,000 feet of ground coverage is 
required. The plans indicate a total ground coverage of 339,335 sq. ft.; therefore, 68 trees 
are required and 61.2” caliper. The applicant is proposing to provide 138 trees and a total 
of 359.5” caliper.  

2. Per C.O. 1171.06(a)(3), a minimum of one deciduous tree is required to be planted for 
every 10 parking spaces. There are 49 parking spaces shown on the plan; therefore, 5 
trees are required to be planted within the parking lot, and the applicant is proposing 6.  

3. Per zoning text section IV(H)(2)(A), one street tree is required to be planted every 30 feet 
on center along Souder Road and have a minimum of 2.5 to 3 inches in caliper. The 
property has 800 feet of frontage along Souder Road; therefore, 27 street trees are 
required to be planted (800/30= 26.6). The applicant proposes to install 11 street trees in 
addition to the 10 existing trees. Staff recommends a condition of approval that a total of 
27 street trees must be planted (condition #1).   

4. Per C.O. 1171.06(a)(2), a minimum of 5% of the overall parking area must be 
landscaped. The applicant is exceeding this requirement by providing 9% (1,392 sq. ft.) 
of landscape area within the parking areas.  

5. Per C.O. 1171.06(b), parking lots are required to be screened from primary streets, 
residential areas, and open space by a minimum 3.5-foot-tall evergreen hedge or masonry 
wall, and this requirement is met with 3.5-foot-tall evergreen hedges. 

6. Per the conditions of approval in the Record of Action from the Planning Commission 
meeting on October 20, 2025 (VAR-72-2025), the applicant is to “Screen the view from 
Traditions Drive; explore putting trees off-site. If that fails, adding trees on-site to screen 
the view from Traditions Drive.” As shown on the landscape plan, the applicant has 
placed additional trees surrounding the basin on the property to the south. 

7. Per the design and landscape standards for Research & Information Campus, four-rail 
fencing shall be installed along Souder Road. Staff recommends a condition of approval 
that the four-rail fence be installed and shown on the plans (condition #2). 

8. The City Landscape Architect reviewed the proposal and had no additional comments.  
 

E. Lighting & Signage 
1. The applicant did not include any proposed signage as part of the application. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that any future signage be subject to staff approval 
and must comply with the city sign code requirements (condition #3).  

2. The applicant has submitted a detailed photometric plan, and it appears that the candle 
foot intensity along the property lines is shown at zero to near zero. 

3. The zoning text contains various requirements related to on-site lighting, including but 
not limited to the following: 
• Zoning text section IV(I)(1) requires all parking lot lights to be cut-off and downcast 
• Zoning text section IV(I)(3) requires all light poles to be no taller than 30 feet and be 

black or New Albany Green. 
• Per zoning text section IV(I)(4), requires shoebox-type light fixtures from a 

controlled source for all parking lot lighting.  
Staff recommends a condition of approval that all other zoning text requirements related 
to light fixtures are met (condition #4).  
 

 
IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 
The City Engineer has reviewed the application in accordance with the engineering-related 
requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and has no comments. 
 
 



PC 25 1215 Stack Data Center FDP-96-2025  6 of 6 

V. SUMMARY 
The proposed use is appropriate based on its location in the New Albany Business Park and close 
proximity to similar uses. The proposed building design is simple and contemporary, matching 
the design of other data centers in the immediate vicinity. The applicant has provided additional 
screening per the conditions of approval through the variance request (VAR-72-2025), therefore 
adhering to the commission’s request.  
 
As the New Albany Business Park has grown, the Planning Commission has included additional 
requirements in more recent zoning texts to ensure that screening for rooftop and ground-
mounted mechanical equipment is provided for both sight and sound, particularly in areas where 
adjacent residential properties exist or are in proximity, to be sensitive in transitioning areas. The 
applicant is committing to these principles, and in addition to providing screen walls, the site 
landscaping has been designed so that existing trees and new landscape along property lines can 
be used to provide additional buffering between properties. 
 
VI.  ACTION 
Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 
following motions would be appropriate:  
 
Move to approve final development plan application FDP-96-2025, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 

1. A total of 27 street trees must be planted.   
2. The four-rail fence is required to be installed and shown on the plans. 
3. Any future signage will be subject to staff approval and must comply with the city sign 

code requirements.  
4. That all zoning text requirements related to light fixtures are met. 

 
Approximate Site Location 

 
Source: NearMap 



123

Community Development Department

RE:      City of New Albany Board and Commission Record of Action

Dear EMH&T c/o Nicholas Ovens,

Attached is the Record of Action for your recent application that was heard by one of the City of New
Albany Boards and Commissions. Please retain this document for your records.  

This Record of Action does not constitute a permit or license to construct, demolish, occupy or make
alterations to any land area or building.  A building and/or zoning permit is required before any work can
be performed.  For more information on the permitting process, please contact the Community
Development Department.

Additionally, if the Record of Action lists conditions of approval these conditions must be met prior to
issuance of any zoning or building permits.  

Please contact our office at (614) 939-2254 with any questions. 

Thank you. 



123

Community Development Department

Decision and Record of Action
Tuesday, December 16, 2025

The New Albany Planning Commission took the following action on 12/15/2025 .

Final Development Plan

Location: PID: 222-005106
Applicant: EMH&T c/o Nicholas Ovens,

Application: PLFDP20250096
Request: Final Development Plan for a new Stack Infrastructure data center on the east side of

Souder Road (PID: 222-005106).
Motion: To approve

Commission Vote: Motion Approved with Conditions, 5-0

Result: Final Development Plan, PLFDP20250096 was Approved with Conditions, by a vote of 5-0.

Recorded in the Official Journal this

Condition(s) of Approval:

1. Aminimum of 27 street trees must be planted. This number does not apply to other areas of
landscaping. 

2. The four-rail fence is required to be installed and shown on the plans.
3. Any future signage will be subject to staff approval and must comply with the city sign code

requirements.
4. That all zoning text requirements related to light fixtures are met.
5. The applicant work with staff during the permitting stages to determine proper landscaping on the

north side of the property due to the potential AEP easement.

Staff Certification:

Jay Henderson
Planner



26 0121 Plain Township Fire Station Rezoning ZC-80-2025  1 of 7   

 
    
 
 

 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

January 21, 2026 Meeting 
 

 
PLAIN TOWNSHIP FIRE STATION 

ZONING AMENDMENT 
 
 
LOCATION:  Generally located at the northwest intersection of State Route 605 and 

New Albany Road East (Parcel ID: portion of 222-005258) 
REQUEST: Zoning Amendment   
ZONING:   North City Business Limited General Employment (L-GE) to 

Community Facilities (CF) 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center 
APPLICATION:  ZC-80-2025 
APPLICANT:  Schorr Architects c/o Nathan Gammella  
 
Review based on: Application materials received on October 22, 2025 and December 1, 2025 
Staff report completed by Sierra Saumenig, Planner II 
 
I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests review and recommendation to city council to rezone approximately 
6.350+/- acres to Community Facilities (CF) from Limited General Employment (L-GE). 
Although the existing parcel comprises approximately 12.72 acres, the applicant intends to split 
the property and develop only the 6.350-acre portion. The proposed zoning allows for a new 
fire station which would serve as a substation for the Plain Township Fire Department 
 
The proposed rezoning was heard at the Rocky Fork-Blacklick Accord meeting on December 18, 
2025, and the board recommended approval.  
 
Per Section 8 of the New Albany Design Guidelines and Requirements, civic and institutional 
facilities must submit a development plan for review by the Architectural Review Board. This 
application is scheduled to be heard by the ARB on February 9, 2026. 
 
 
II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 
The overall site is 12.72+/- acres and the applicant intends to split the lot. The proposed fire 
station would be developed on 6.350 acres. The site is generally located at the northwest 
intersection of State Route 605/New Albany-Condit Road and New Albany Road East. The site is 
currently vacant but includes a gas easement that runs through the site. Surrounding uses include 
the Nottingham subdivision to the north and office/commercial uses to the east, west, and south.  
                 
III. PLAN REVIEW 
Planning Commission’s review authority of the zoning amendment application is found under 
C.O. Chapters 1107.02, C.O. 1111, and C.O. 1151.05. Upon review of the proposed amendment 
to the zoning map, the Commission is to make recommendation to City Council. Staff’s review is 
based on city plans and studies, proposed zoning text, and the codified ordinances. Primary 
concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended action in 
underlined text.  

 



26 0121 Plain Township Fire Station Rezoning ZC-80-2025  2 of 7   

Per Codified Ordinance Chapter 1111.06 in deciding on the change, the Planning Commission 
shall consider, among other things, the following elements of the case: 

(a) Adjacent land use. 
(b) The relationship of topography to the use intended or to its implications. 
(c) Access, traffic flow. 
(d) Adjacent zoning. 
(e) The correctness of the application for the type of change requested. 
(f) The relationship of the use requested to the public health, safety, or general welfare. 
(g) The relationship of the area requested to the area to be used. 
(h) The impact of the proposed use on the local school district(s). 

 
A. New Albany Strategic Plan  
The Engage New Albany strategic plan lists the following development standards for the 
Employment Center future land use district: 

1. No freeway / pole signs are allowed.  
2. Heavy landscaping is necessary to buffer these uses from adjacent residential areas.  
3. Plan office buildings within context of the area, not just the site, including building 

heights within development parcels. 
4. Sites with multiple buildings should be well organized and clustered if possible. 
5. All office developments are encouraged to employ shared parking or be designed to 

accommodate it. 
6. All office developments should plan for regional stormwater management. 
7. All associated mechanical operations should be concealed from the public right-of-way 

and screened architecturally or with landscape in an appealing manner. 
8. Any periphery security should integrate with the existing landscape and maintain and 

enhance the character of road corridor. 
9. Combined curb cuts and cross-access easements are encouraged. 
10. The use of materials, colors, and texture to break up large-scale facades is required. 

 
B. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The rezoning request is to allow for a new 9,125 sq. ft. fire station that will serve Plain 
Township and New Albany. 

2. The Rocky Fork-Blacklick Accord plan identifies the Walnut Street and State Route 
605 area as a likely location for a future fire station, which aligns with the site proposal. 

3. Although the existing parcel comprises approximately 12.72 acres, the applicant 
intends to split the property and develop only the 6.350-acre portion. Staff recommends 
a condition of approval that the lot split occur prior to the rezoning going into effect 
(condition #1). 

4. The proposed zoning is Community Facilities which permits governmental uses.  
5. The Engage New Albany strategic plan designates the area as the Employment Center 

future land use category. While the site is located in this district, the strategic plan does 
not offer any development standards for governmental uses. Governmental uses are not a 
specific land use category identified in the strategic plan. As such, these uses are intended 
to be integrated throughout the community, and the rezoning assists in accomplishing that 
goal. 

6. The following table includes the required and proposed setbacks for Community 
Facilities: 

Standard Permitted Proposed 
Front Yards: The front yard 

setback shall not be 
less than the largest 
required front yard 
setback for any 
adjacent zoning 
district. 

New Albany-Condit Road: 250 
feet which is not less than any 
adjacent zoning district. 

Side and Rear Yard 50’ Side Yard: 50’ (south side) 



26 0121 Plain Township Fire Station Rezoning ZC-80-2025  3 of 7   

Side Yard: 71’ (north side) 
Rear Yard: 280’ 

Driveway 10’ 50’ 
Parking Area 50’ 71’ 

7. The existing zoning text requires a minimum pavement and building setback of 125’ 
which the proposed development is exceeding.  

 
C. Access, Loading, Parking  

1. The site is accessed from one proposed curb cut along New Albany-Condit Road. 
2. A leisure path along New Albany-Condit Road is required and the applicant is showing 

that on the site plan. Due to an existing ditch on the north side of the property, the leisure 
path is proposed to go around the ditch and that is shown on the plans. 

3. The applicant is proposing a pedestrian connection from the leisure trail into the site. 
4. A four-rail horse fence is required to be installed, and it is shown on the renderings but 

not on the site plan. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the proposed horse 
fence is shown on the site plan (condition #2). 

5. The city’s codified ordinance does not indicate required parking for fire stations and thus, 
the Planning Commission has discretion as to how many parking spaces are sufficient for 
this use. The applicant has provided justification in the narrative statement included in the 
application packet. The applicant’s justification is as follows: 

o The proposed site plan provides a total of 20 parking spaces, divided between 
two parking areas located on opposite sides of the building. The west (rear) 
lot, which is screened from the roadway, includes 12 spaces designated for 
fire station personnel. The substation operates with six firefighters on duty at 
any given time across three shifts, totaling 18 firefighters. This operational 
structure requires a minimum of six parking spaces, with additional spaces 
necessary to accommodate shift overlap. The east lot provides eight parking 
spaces dedicated exclusively to community visitors. The number of visitor 
spaces is based on typical demand observed at comparable fire stations. 
Separating the parking into two distinct lots improves site circulation, allows 
visitors to easily identify and access appropriate parking, and maintains clear 
separation between staff and visitor vehicles. 

6. The existing zoning text states that there shall be dedicated right-of-way for New Albany-
Condit Road to the city for a distance of 50 feet measured from the centerline. Easements 
shall be required to be granted prior to the issuance of a building permit in this zoning 
district adjacent to public street rights-of-way at a distance necessary to accommodate 
city street capital improvement projects when insufficient right-of-way exists to 
accommodate these improvements. The applicant is showing the 50’ right-of-way 
however, staff recommends a condition of approval that the applicant show the required 
easement, once the necessary dimension is determined during the engineering permit 
process (condition #3). 

7. The site required a traffic access study and the applicant completed this. Staff 
recommends a condition of approval that the requirements of the traffic access study are 
met (condition #4).  

o Add queuing analysis detail: distance from SB SR 605 stop bar at New 
Albany Road East to fire station driveway. 

o Perform minor clearing & grubbing of west ditch north of driveway to meet 
sight distance requirements. 

o Provide hard-wired interconnection between fire station button and SR 
605/New Albany Road East signal for preemption, plus connection to 
recommended warning beacon. 
 

D. Architectural Standards 
1. Requirements set forth in Section 8 of the Design Guidelines and Requirements apply to 

this site and the applicant has agreed to meet the requirements of the existing zoning text. 



26 0121 Plain Township Fire Station Rezoning ZC-80-2025  4 of 7   

2. Section 8(III.2) of the Design Guidelines & Requirements states the selection of 
architectural style shall be appropriate to the context, location, and function of the 
building. Public recreational structures may be appropriately designed using vernacular 
forms as inspiration, such as a historic barn. 

o The applicant proposes a barn style building including steel wall panels and a 
stone water table.  

3. The existing zoning text states buildings shall be no more than 65 feet and the proposed 
fire station is 39 feet in height, thus meeting this requirement.  

4. Section 8(III.3) of the Design Guidelines & Requirements (DGRs) states in keeping with 
traditional practice, the entrances to civic and institutional buildings shall be oriented 
toward primary streets and roads and shall be of a distinctive character that makes them 
easy to locate. Entrances shall be scaled and detailed to match the scale and detail of 
interior public spaces.  

o The main entrance of the fire station is oriented towards New Albany-Condit 
Road. 

5. Section 8(III.4) of the Design Guidelines & Requirements (DGRS) Civic and institutional 
designs shall follow the precedents of traditional American architectural designs, with 
particular care paid to the proportions of wall height to width; roof shape; and proportions 
of windows and doors, including vertically proportioned windowpanes. The details and 
design characteristics of the traditional style selected for a new building shall be carefully 
studied and faithfully rendered in the new building’s design. 

o The proposed building features a varied roof design, vertically proportioned 
windowpanes, and well-balanced doors integrated into the building facades.  

6. The zoning text requires complete screening of elements such as meter boxes, utility 
conduits, etc. The plan shows ground equipment screened, behind the proposed fire 
station. 

7. The zoning text requires complete screening of all roof-mounted equipment 
on all four sides of the building using materials that are consistent and harmonious with 
the building’s façade and character. It does not appear there is rooftop equipment 
proposed on the building.  

8. The city architect has reviewed the proposed development and has the following 
comments below. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the city architect 
comments are addressed subject to staff approval (condition #5). 

o The two-story gable element at the main entry appears forced and out of 
character with the front façade. The city architect recommends removing the 
gable and redistributing the windows to create a more balanced and cohesive 
façade, generally as illustrated (below). 

o Provide a taller roof pitch on cupola. 

 
o Create overhangs as shown on the sketch below 



26 0121 Plain Township Fire Station Rezoning ZC-80-2025  5 of 7   

o Columns should be wide to visually support the roof above. Eliminate 
cultured stone wrapping the columns and use a 6’ tall solid stone base. 

o Align neck of columns. 

 
 

E. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  
1. Maximum lot coverage under the existing zoning text is 75 percent. The proposed 

development proposes only 18.8 percent building and pavement coverage, which is well 
below and substantially exceeds the requirement for compliance. 

2. Parking Lot Landscaping Requirement: 
o Codified Ordinance 1171.06(a)(3) requires one tree per 10 parking spaces.  The 

applicant proposes 20 parking spaces thereby requiring two trees. The plan meets 
this requirement by providing two trees. 

3. Parking lots shall be screened from rights-of-way with a minimum 36-inch-high 
evergreen landscape hedge or wall. The landscape plan meets this requirement with the 
proposed 36-inch-high evergreen landscape hedge. 

4. General Site Landscaping Requirement:  
o Codified Ordinance 1171(5)(e) requires parking lots over 50,000 square feet to 

have a minimum of one tree per 5,000 square feet of ground coverage and a total 
tree planting equal to 25 in tree trunk size for every 4,000 square feet of ground 
coverage. The applicant states that the internal ground coverage is 52,035 sq. ft. 
requiring 11 trees at 25.5” total caliber (CAL). This requirement is met. 

5. Street Tree Landscaping Requirement:  
o The existing zoning text requires 4 trees per lineal feet along New Albany-Condit 

Road. The applicant is providing a total of 5 trees at the southeast corner of the 
site. Due to site safety, these are proposed to be planted in a naturalized way. No 
trees are proposed within the gas easement.  

6. The New Albany Business Park Research and Information Campus Landscape Design 
Guidelines and the existing zoning text require plantings and mounding along New 
Albany-Condit Road however, the applicant is requesting no mounding due to safety and 
sight reasons. Additionally, the applicant is requesting that the required plantings be 
relocated to the north side of the property.  

o Both the landscape guidelines and the zoning text provide flexibility regarding 
mounding and landscaping. Given that this site will function as a fire station, 
eliminating mounding is appropriate to ensure clear visibility for drivers and to 
allow emergency vehicles to safely and efficiently exit the site. However, the 
proposed planting plan is not showing the relocation of the plantings. Staff 
recommends a condition of approval that the applicant show the relocated 
plantings in the northwest corner subject to staff approval (condition #6) 

7. Codified Ordinance 1171.08 states that basins should have a natural shape and are no 
steeper than 6:1. The applicant is proposing a naturalized dry basin and is meeting the 
slope requirement.  

8. The zoning text requires a stream corridor protection zone to be provided along the 
northern property line, and the applicant is showing this on the site plans indicating no 
development within the zone. 

9. The City Landscape Architect reviewed the proposed development and had no further 
comments on the revised plans. 



26 0121 Plain Township Fire Station Rezoning ZC-80-2025  6 of 7   

 
F. Lighting & Signage 

1. No signage is proposed at this time. Per the text all signage shall meet the standards set 
forth in Codified Ordinance 1169 (City Sign Code). Staff recommends a condition of 
approval that signage be evaluated and subject to staff approval (condition #7). 

2. The applicant has submitted a photometric plan and the site has zero or near zero foot 
candles at the property lines.  

3. The applicant submitted lighting specification sheets; however, the proposed height of the 
parking lot light poles is not clearly identified. The fixtures are proposed to be downcast, 
which complies with code requirements. Staff recommends a condition of approval 
requiring that all light poles not exceed 30 feet in height and be constructed of metal with 
a black or New Albany Green finish (Condition #8). 
 

G. Other Considerations 
1. The property owner has submitted a school impact statement which states the proposed 

rezoning will have no impact on the student population of New Albany Plain Local 
School District. 
 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 
The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 
requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and had no further comments aside from the Traffic 
Access Study comments in Section C of this report. 
 
IV. SUMMARY 
The proposed rezoning to Community Facilities is intended to allow for the development of the 
Plain Township Fire Station, a critical piece of public safety infrastructure. Fire stations provide 
essential emergency services, facilitate rapid response times, and support the health, safety, and 
welfare of both existing and future development. Because this facility will serve both Plain 
Township and the City, the proposed location is well suited to provide efficient access for both 
jurisdictions. Furthermore, the Accord plan identifies the Walnut Street and State Route 605 
area as a likely location for a future fire station, which aligns with the site proposal. 
 
The site has been thoughtfully designed, with a layout that accommodates operational needs 
while preserving a substantial amount of green space. The proposed development meets or 
exceeds nearly all applicable setbacks and other requirements, demonstrating a high level of 
compliance with zoning standards. The primary building entrance is oriented toward the main 
roadway, reinforcing its civic presence, and incorporates architectural elements that enhance 
visibility and contribute positively to the streetscape. Overall, the proposed rezoning and site 
design are consistent with the intended purpose of the Community Facilities district and support 
the delivery of essential public services. 
 

 
V. ACTION 
Suggested Motions for ZC-80-2025:  
 
Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 
following motion would be appropriate (conditions may be added):   
 
Move to approve application ZC-80-2025 based on the findings in the staff report with the 
following condition: 

1. That the lot split occur prior to the effective date of the rezoning. 
2. The proposed horse fence is shown on the site plan. 
3. The applicant shows the required easement along New Albany-Condit Road. 
4. The requirements of the traffic access study are met. 
5. That the applicant meets the revisions from the City Architect.  



26 0121 Plain Township Fire Station Rezoning ZC-80-2025  7 of 7   

6. The applicant show the relocated plantings in the northwest corner subject to staff 
approval. 

7. Signage to be evaluated at a later date and subject to staff approval. 
8. All light poles to not exceed 30 feet in height and be constructed of metal with a black or 

New Albany Green finish 
 
Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: NearMap 
 



 Address:       7815 Walton Parkway   ●  New Albany, Ohio 43054 ●  Phone 614.939.2254 

  Mailing Address:         99 West Main Street  ●  P.O. Box 188   ●  New Albany, Ohio 43054 

     Community Development Planning Application 

Site Address  

Parcel Numbers 

Acres  # of lots created 

Choose Application Type Description of Request: 
☐Appeal ☐ Extension Request
☐Certificate of Appropriateness ☐ Variance
☐Conditional Use ☐ Vacation
☐Development Plan
☐Plat
☐Lot Changes
☐Minor Commercial Subdivision
☐Zoning Amendment (Rezoning)
☐Zoning Text Modification

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Site visits to the property by City of New Albany representatives are essential to process this application. 
The Owner/Applicant, as signed below, hereby authorizes Village of New Albany representatives, 
employees and appointed and elected officials to visit, photograph and post a notice on the property 
described in this application. I certify that the information here within and attached to this application is 
true, correct and complete.  

Signature of Owner Date: 
Signature of Applicant Date: 

Applicant Information 
Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Phone Number 

Email 

C
on

ta
ct

s 
Si

gn
at

ur
e 

Su
bm

is
si

on
 Submit planning applications and all required materials via email to planning@newalbanyohio.org 

Paper copies are not required at this time however, 12 paper copies of the entire submission will be required 

ahead of a board hearing date. The planner assigned to your case will inform you when the paper copies need 

to be delivered to our offices. Fee invoices will be issued to you once the application is entered. 

Property Owner Information 
Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Phone Number 

Email 

mailto:planning@newalbanyohio.org


 

 

structuring your idea © page 1 of 2 

Schorr Architects Project No. 2537 

November 20, 2025 

 
Christopher Christian 
Planning Manager 
City of New Albany 
99 W. Main Street 
PO Box 188 
New Albany, OH 43054 
 
Re: Fire Station 122; Property Rezoning 
 
Mr. Christian, 
 
The following information is submitted on behalf of Plain Township to request a zoning variance for the 
proposed parcel. The following is noted in accordance with section 1111.03. 
 

a) Names, addresses, and phone numbers of the applicants and owners are listed on the 
application form.  

b) Refer to the proposed lot split exhibit. A certified address has not been established for the 
portions of the two lots, 222-005258 & 222-005259. Plain Township and The New Albany 
Company, LLC are currently in the process of transferring the deed to the property highlighted in 
red, as well as establishing a new, certified address. Since Plain Township is not yet the property 
owner, The New Albany Company, LLC has drafted a letter of consent to allow the submission 
for the rezoning of the property.  

a. The legal description of the address is as follows below. Please note that the description 
comes from Franklin County Auditor and does not reflect the lot split. 

i. NEW ALBANY CONDIT RD 
ii. R16 T2 1/4T2 

iii. 11.692 ACRES 
c) The current zoning classification is I-PUD - Infill Planned Unit Development District. 
d) The proposed classification is CF - Community Facilities District. 
e) A site plan is included. 
f) The property owners within 200 feet of the parcel are as listed below. Having a fire station near 

these properties will have a positive impact on the community, due to decreased emergency 
response times. When fire trucks exit the property during an emergency, traffic will be alerted, 
and stopped for a brief duration.  

1. North: The New Albany Company, LLC; 8000 Walton Parkway, Suite 120, New Albany, 
Ohio 43054 

2. Northeast: Alawad Bashar, 5660 Harlem Road, New Albany, Ohio 43054 
3. East: American Regent, Inc., 960 Crupper Road, Shirley, New York 11967 



 

 

structuring your idea © page 2 of 2 

Schorr Architects Project No. 2537 

4. Southeast: TJX Companies, Inc., 770 Cochituate Road, Framingham Massachusetts 
01701 

5. South: Discover Properties, LLC, 2500 Lake Cook Road, Riverwoods, Illinois 60015 
6. Southwest/West: Edged Columbus, LLC, 30 Old Kings Highway South, Suite 1005 

Darien, Connecticut 06820 
7. Northwest: The City of New Albany; 8000 Walton Parkway, Suite 120, New Albany, Ohio 

43054 
g) The proposed change will allow the development of the site and the construction of a new fire 

station for the community.  
h) No impact on the student population of the local school district(s) is anticipated due to this 

development. 
i) Deed restrictions are a condition of the deed transfer, and all developments on the site are 

subject to NACO’s approval. 
j) A traffic study is underway. 
k) There is a total of 20 spaces on the proposed site plan split between two situated on opposite 

sides of the building. The west (back) side of the building, which is screened from the road, has 
12 spaces which are programmed for fire station personnel. The substation will have 6 
firefighters on call at a given time, working in 3 shifts, for a total of 18 firefighters. Thus, in this lot 
there is a need for a minimum of 6 spaces, plus additional spaces for the overlap of shifts. The 
east lot contains 8 parking spaces, and it is solely for accommodating visitors from the 
community. The number of visitor parking spaces was determined based on the typical 
community needs observed at other fire stations. Splitting the lots allows visitors to easily 
navigate to parking, and keeps the vehicles separated.  

l) Schorr Architects will provide any additional information by request.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Schorr Architects, Inc.  

 

 
 
Nathan Gammella 
Project Executive     
 



1

Nathan Gammella

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:

Nathan,  

 

Please see the email from Tom Rubey as a letter of consent. 

 

Thank you, 

 

Ben Collins  

Township Administrator 

 

45 Second Street 

PO Box 273 

New Albany, OH 43054 

P: (614) 855-2085 

F: (614) 855-2087 

www.plaintownship.org 

 

Begin forwarded message: 

From:

Date:

To: Jill

Cc: C

  

Ben, 

  

Please accept this e mail as our consent as property owner for Plain Township to proceed with the 

City to allow zoning change and ARB Review, for the property on the northwest corner of 605 and 

New Albany Road East.  

  

Please contact me directly if you have any questions or concerns.   

  

PANY 
0       



NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST (100')
P.B. 86, P. 78

N
EW

 A
LB

A
N

Y
-C

O
N

D
IT

 R
O

A
D

 (S
.R

. 6
05

)
(W

ID
TH

 V
A

R
IE

S)

CL

C L
P.

B
. 8

6,
 P

. 7
8

PROPOSED SPLIT EXHIBIT
LOT 15, SECTION 8, QUARTER TOWNSHIP 2, TOWNSHIP 2, RANGE 16

UNITED STATES MILITARY DISTRICT
CITY OF NEW ALBANY, COUNTY OF FRANKLIN, STATE OF OHIO

ngammella
Polygon



0’ 200’ 400’100’
SCALE : 1” = 200’

11.19.2025

FIRE SUBSTATION: GAS EASEMENT

PROJECT SITE



FIBER OPTICMARKER POST

FIBER PULL BOX
FIBER PULL BOX

SILT FENCE

SILT FENCE

SILT FENCE

SILT FENCE

GAS MARKER POST

GAS MARKER POST

SIGN

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC 15" PVC

15
" P

VC
8"

 P
VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

TOP = 1022.79'INV E = 1007.04'INV W = 1006.94'
TOP = 1026.48'INV E = 1008.08'INV W = 1008.03'

TOP = 1029.93'INV E = 1009.58'INV W = 1009.33'

TOP = 1032.26'INV N = 1010.16'INV E = 1010.11'INV W = 1010.06'
TOP = 1032.72'INV S = 1011.12'INV N = 1010.92'INV E = 1010.82'INV W = 1010.82'

TOP = 1028.64'INV N = 1010.54'INV S = 1010.44'

TOP = 1030.25'INV N = 1010.95'INV S = 1010.95'

TOP = 1028.89'INV N = 1011.44'INV S = 1011.55'

12
" C

PP

84" X 48" RCP

6" CPP

6" CPP

42
" C

PP

INV = 1028.79'

INV = 1028.46'

INV = 1025.19'
INV = 1023.92

CONTROL POINT #2
MAG NAIL
N: 766,990.91'
E: 1,881,320.05'
ELEV: 1032.68'

CONTROL POINT #5
5/8" IRON PIN W/
"TRAVERSE" CAP
N: 767,531.18'
E: 1,880,721.29'
ELEV: 1021.08'

WATER MARKER
POST

6" PLASTIC GAS LINE

8" PLASTIC GAS LINE

PER TC ENERGY

GIS MAP

FIBER PULL BOX

INV = 1023.94'

INV = 1027.23'

W/L PER
RECORD

W/L PER
RECORD

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION EASEMENT

E
TRP

W

W

PB

T

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

TR

W
W

TR
E

PB

E

PB

PB

PB

PB

10"7"
6"5"5"4"

5"5"5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

90
' S

CP
Z

GAS MARKER POST

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX
 E

/P

EX
 E

/P

12
"

W
AT

ER
(1

1-
02

0_
01

0)

NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST

(100' R/W, PB 86 PG 78)
NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST(80' R/W, PB 107 PG 90)

N0
3°

35
'05

"E

QT
R.

 T
W

P.
 2,

 LO
T 

15
QT

R.
 T

W
P.

 1,
 LO

T 
16

⅊

⅊

⅊

N0
3°

48
'19

"E
    

56
8.3

2'

S85°58'00"E    728.51'

S1
6°

19
'37

"W
45

.34
'

N86°24'55"W
45.66'

N20°30'38"W
    273.41'

R=50.00'
L=78.53'

Δ=89°59'12"BEARING=S48°34'41"WCHORD=70.70'

S0
3°

35
'05

"W
    

40
0.2

4'

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

8" DEEP

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

S0
3°

35
'05

"W
    

11
6.4

7'

S29°13'56"E    92.76'

R=1350.00'
L=581.50'
Δ=24°40'46"
BEARING=S81°14'42"WCHORD=577.01'

BENCHMARK
CUT BOX ON
L-POLE BASE

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y 

CO
ND

IT
 R

OA
D

(S
R 

60
5, 

R/
W

 V
AR

IE
S,

 P
B 

86
 P

G 
79

)

2

3

1

SHEET NO.

SHEET NAME:

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

I 
N

 S
 P

 I
 R

 E
 D

  
  

P
 E

 O
 P

 L
 E

  
  

  
  

  
C

 R
 E

 A
 T

 I
 V

 E
  

  
D

 E
 S

 I
 G

 N
  

  
  

  
  

T
 R

 A
 N

 S
 F

 O
 R

 M
 I

 N
 G

  
  

C
 O

 M
 M

 U
 N

 I
 T

 I
 E

 S

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SEAL:

 H
:\C

ol
um

bu
s\

20
25

\2
50

45
8\

00
0\

_

1

350 Worthington Rd

250458.000

12-08-2025

PLAIN TOWNSHIP
FIRE STATION 122

0 8020 40

C100

DEMOLITION PLAN

DEMOLITION LEGEND
SAWCUT LINE

CLEAR EX TREE LINE

REMOVE GRAVEL

CODED NOTES
REMOVE TREELINE

REMOVE SILT FENCE FROM ADJACENT
CONSTRUCTION AREA

REMOVE GRAVEL

REMOVE FIRE HYDRANT,CONNECTING FIRE LINE,
AND WATER VALVE.

1

2

3

4

4



FIBER OPTICMARKER POST

FIBER PULL BOX
FIBER PULL BOX

SILT FENCE

GAS MARKER POST

GAS MARKER POST

SIGN

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC 15" PVC

15
" P

VC
8"

 P
VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

TOP = 1022.79'INV E = 1007.04'INV W = 1006.94'
TOP = 1026.48'INV E = 1008.08'INV W = 1008.03'

TOP = 1029.93'INV E = 1009.58'INV W = 1009.33'

TOP = 1032.26'INV N = 1010.16'INV E = 1010.11'INV W = 1010.06'
TOP = 1032.72'INV S = 1011.12'INV N = 1010.92'INV E = 1010.82'INV W = 1010.82'

TOP = 1028.64'INV N = 1010.54'INV S = 1010.44'

TOP = 1030.25'INV N = 1010.95'INV S = 1010.95'

TOP = 1028.89'INV N = 1011.44'INV S = 1011.55'

12
" C

PP

84" X 48" RCP

6" CPP

6" CPP

42
" C

PP

INV = 1028.79'

INV = 1028.46'

INV = 1025.19'
INV = 1023.92

WATER MARKER
POST

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC
IN. 202402160016227

12.737 ACRES

EDGED COLUMBUS LLC
IN. 202312290135331

14.749 ACRES

STATE OF OHIO
IN. 199908230213995

0.707 ACRES

STATE OF OHIO,
DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

IN. 200504010059337
PARCEL 17 WD
1.470 ACRES

HI
GH

W
AY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
DB

 30
99

 P
G 

90
0.1

84
 A

CR
ES

NO
TT

IN
GH

AM
 T

RA
CE

PH
AS

E 
1

PB
 12

4 P
G 

15RESERVE "C" CITY OF NEW ALBANY
IN. 201803200036903

TH
E 

CI
TY

 O
F 

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
HI

O
IN

. 2
01

80
11

70
00

70
56

0.3
54

 A
CR

ES

6" PLASTIC GAS LINE

8" PLASTIC GAS LINE

PER TC ENERGY

GIS MAP

FIBER PULL BOX

INV = 1023.94'

INV = 1027.23'

W/L PER
RECORD

W/L PER
RECORD

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION EASEMENT

E
TRP

W

PB

T

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

TR

W
W

TR
E

PB

E

PB

PB

PB

PB

10"7"
6"5"5"4"

5"5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"

5"
5"

90
' S

CP
Z

GAS MARKER POST

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX
 E

/P

EX
 E

/P

12
"

W
AT

ER
(1

1-
02

0_
01

0)
NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST

(100' R/W, PB 86 PG 78)
NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST(80' R/W, PB 107 PG 90)

N0
3°

35
'05

"E

QT
R.

 T
W

P.
 2,

 LO
T 

15
QT

R.
 T

W
P.

 1,
 LO

T 
16

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC
IN. 201803090032444

NOTTINGHAM TRACE
PHASE 1

PB 124 PG 15
LOT 58

⅊

⅊

⅊

BENCHMARK
CUT BOX ON
L-POLE BASE

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y 

CO
ND

IT
 R

OA
D

(S
R 

60
5, 

R/
W

 V
AR

IE
S,

 P
B 

86
 P

G 
79

)

O
U

Y
H

D

WV

Y
H D

WV

CO

O
U

O
U

X

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

STREAM CORRIDOR PROTECTION  ZONE (90')

STREAM CORRIDOR PROTECTION  ZONE (90')

CENTERLINE OF STREAM

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

50
' S

ET
BA

CK

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

IR
E

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G

FIRE TRUCK

AMBULANCE

50' SETBACK

PROPOSED PROPERTY SPLIT

PR
OP

 R
/W

FIRE TRUCK

12
5' 

BU
ILD

IN
G/

PA
VE

ME
NT

SE
TB

AC
K

50' SETBACK

25
0' 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
SE

TB
AC

K

1

1

62

2

2

8

12

3

9

4

4

4

4

5

4

R20'

5

6
7

8

9

10

2

1

4

24'

20'

9'

24
'

30
'

9'

6'

19
'

9'

19'

8'

100'

R20'

3

R30'

R30'

9'

50'

7

PROPOSED
GENERATOR

PROPOSED
TRANSFORMER

PROPOSED
MECHANICAL

EQUIPMENT

8

3

SCREEN FENCE

R50'

R25'

3

R10'

1

PROPOSED
LEISURE

TRAIL

R
50'

PROPOSED RETENTION BASIN
(WET POND)

MEETING NA DESIGN
REQUIREMENTS, FINAL SIZE TO
BE CALCULATED

7

8'

1

PROPOSED
LEISURE
TRAIL

SIGN

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

TOP = 1030.25'INV N = 1010.95'INV S = 1010.95'

TOP = 1028.89'INV N = 1011.44'INV S = 1011.55'

WATER MARKER
POST

W/L PER
RECORD

S

S

GAS MARKER POST

EX
 E

/P

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y 

CO
ND

IT
 R

OA
D

(S
R 

60
5, 

R/
W

 V
AR

IE
S,

 P
B 

86
 P

G 
79

)

Y

H D

WV

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

PR
OP

 R
/W

INSTALL FIRE DEPARTMENT WARNING
SIGN (W11-8) W/ FLASHING BEACON AND
WITH "WHEN FLASHING" SIGN (W16-13P)

INSTALL CONDUIT AND WIRING FROM
FIRE STATION THROUGH
RIGHT-OF-WAY TO THIS LOCATION

42
5'

SHEET NO.

SHEET NAME:

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

I 
N

 S
 P

 I
 R

 E
 D

  
  

P
 E

 O
 P

 L
 E

  
  

  
  

  
C

 R
 E

 A
 T

 I
 V

 E
  

  
D

 E
 S

 I
 G

 N
  

  
  

  
  

T
 R

 A
 N

 S
 F

 O
 R

 M
 I

 N
 G

  
  

C
 O

 M
 M

 U
 N

 I
 T

 I
 E

 S

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SEAL:

 H
:\C

ol
um

bu
s\

20
25

\2
50

45
8\

00
0\

_D
W

G
\_

Sh
ee

ts
\2

50
45

8L
O

C
00

0.
dw

g,
 1

/5
/2

02
6 

3:
01

 P
M

, K
yl

e 
W

eb
er

KLEINGERS
GROUP

THE

350 Worthington Rd

250458.000

12-08-2025

PLAIN TOWNSHIP
FIRE STATION 122

0 8020 40

C101

LOCATION PLAN

PROPOSED LEGEND
CATCH BASIN

CURB INLET

YARD DRAIN

HEADWALL

MANHOLE

STORM SEWER CLEANOUT

DOWNSPOUT

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

FIRE HYDRANT

WATER VALVE

POST INDICATOR VALVE

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

LIGHT POLE

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE WALK

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

PARKING COUNT#

FDC

PIV

WV

Y
H D

DS

CO

A

100

100

100

100

100

CO

CODED NOTES
STANDARD DUTY ASPHALT

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT

EXTERIOR WALK

BARRIER CURB

ACCESSIBLE PARKING SIGN

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVEMENT

HORSE FENCE PER CITY'S STANDARD DETAIL

PROPOSED TREELINE

FLAGPOLE

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

LOCATION PLAN NOTES:

1. ALL RADII ARE 5' TO FACE OF CURB UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED

2. ALL DIMENSIONS ARE TO THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT AND/OR
FACE OF CURB, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED

6'

WARNING SIGN LOCATION
425' NORTH OF PROPOSED DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WHEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLASHING



FIBER OPTICMARKER POST

FIBER PULL BOX
FIBER PULL BOX

SILT FENCE

GAS MARKER POST

GAS MARKER POST

SIGN

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC 15" PVC

15
" P

VC
8"

 P
VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

TOP = 1022.79'INV E = 1007.04'INV W = 1006.94'
TOP = 1026.48'INV E = 1008.08'INV W = 1008.03'

TOP = 1029.93'INV E = 1009.58'INV W = 1009.33'

TOP = 1032.26'INV N = 1010.16'INV E = 1010.11'INV W = 1010.06'
TOP = 1032.72'INV S = 1011.12'INV N = 1010.92'INV E = 1010.82'INV W = 1010.82'

TOP = 1028.64'INV N = 1010.54'INV S = 1010.44'

TOP = 1030.25'INV N = 1010.95'INV S = 1010.95'

TOP = 1028.89'INV N = 1011.44'INV S = 1011.55'

12
" C

PP

84" X 48" RCP

6" CPP

6" CPP

42
" C

PP

INV = 1028.79'

INV = 1028.46'

INV = 1025.19'
INV = 1023.92

WATER MARKER
POST

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC
IN. 202402160016227

12.737 ACRES

EDGED COLUMBUS LLC
IN. 202312290135331

14.749 ACRES

STATE OF OHIO
IN. 199908230213995

0.707 ACRES

STATE OF OHIO,
DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

IN. 200504010059337
PARCEL 17 WD
1.470 ACRES

HI
GH

W
AY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
DB

 30
99

 P
G 

90
0.1

84
 A

CR
ES

NO
TT

IN
GH

AM
 T

RA
CE

PH
AS

E 
1

PB
 12

4 P
G 

15RESERVE "C" CITY OF NEW ALBANY
IN. 201803200036903

TH
E 

CI
TY

 O
F 

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
HI

O
IN

. 2
01

80
11

70
00

70
56

0.3
54

 A
CR

ES

6" PLASTIC GAS LINE

8" PLASTIC GAS LINE

PER TC ENERGY

GIS MAP

FIBER PULL BOX

INV = 1023.94'

INV = 1027.23'

W/L PER
RECORD

W/L PER
RECORD

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION EASEMENT

E
TRP

W

PB

T

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

TR

W
W

TR
E

PB

E

PB

PB

PB

PB

10"7"
6"5"5"4"

5"5"5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

90
' S

CP
Z

GAS MARKER POST

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX
 E

/P

EX
 E

/P

12
"

W
AT

ER
(1

1-
02

0_
01

0)

NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST

(100' R/W, PB 86 PG 78)
NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST(80' R/W, PB 107 PG 90)

N0
3°

35
'05

"E

QT
R.

 T
W

P.
 2,

 LO
T 

15
QT

R.
 T

W
P.

 1,
 LO

T 
16

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC
IN. 201803090032444

NOTTINGHAM TRACE
PHASE 1

PB 124 PG 15
LOT 58

⅊

⅊

⅊

N0
3°

48
'19

"E
    

56
8.3

2'

S85°58'00"E    728.51'

S1
6°

19
'37

"W
45

.34
'

N86°24'55"W
45.66'

N20°30'38"W
    273.41'

R=50.00'
L=78.53'

Δ=89°59'12"BEARING=S48°34'41"WCHORD=70.70'

S0
3°

35
'05

"W
    

40
0.2

4'

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

8" DEEP

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

S0
3°

35
'05

"W
    

11
6.4

7'

S29°13'56"E    92.76'

R=1350.00'
L=581.50'
Δ=24°40'46"
BEARING=S81°14'42"WCHORD=577.01'

BENCHMARK
CUT BOX ON
L-POLE BASE

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y 

CO
ND

IT
 R

OA
D

(S
R 

60
5, 

R/
W

 V
AR

IE
S,

 P
B 

86
 P

G 
79

)

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

U
E

UE

U
E

UE

O
U

Y
H

D

WV

Y

H D

WV

CO

O
U

O
U

X

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

STREAM CORRIDOR PROTECTION  ZONE (90')

STREAM CORRIDOR PROTECTION  ZONE (90')

CENTERLINE OF STREAM

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

50
' S

ET
BA

CK

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

IR
E

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G

FIRE TRUCK

AMBULANCE

50' SETBACK

PROPOSED PROPERTY SPLIT

PR
OP

 R
/W

FIRE TRUCK

12
5' 

BU
ILD

IN
G/

PA
VE

ME
NT

SE
TB

AC
K

50' SETBACK

25
0' 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
SE

TB
AC

K

G

G

G

G

G

G G G G

G G

G

G

G

G

G

G G G G G G

5

6 7

8

9

10

2

1

4

12
" S

TM

12" STM

12
" S

TM

12" STM

12" STM

12
" S

TM

12" STM

6" SAN
SERVICE

DOMESTIC
SERVICE

FIRE
SERVICE

312
" S

TM

SHEET NO.

SHEET NAME:

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

I 
N

 S
 P

 I
 R

 E
 D

  
  

P
 E

 O
 P

 L
 E

  
  

  
  

  
C

 R
 E

 A
 T

 I
 V

 E
  

  
D

 E
 S

 I
 G

 N
  

  
  

  
  

T
 R

 A
 N

 S
 F

 O
 R

 M
 I

 N
 G

  
  

C
 O

 M
 M

 U
 N

 I
 T

 I
 E

 S

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SEAL:

 H
:\C

ol
um

bu
s\

20
25

\2
50

45
8\

00
0\

_D
W

G
\_

Sh
ee

ts
\2

50
45

8U
TL

00
0.

dw
g,

 1
/5

/2
02

6 
3:

01
 P

M
, K

yl
e 

W
eb

er

KLEINGERS
GROUP

THE

1

350 Worthington Rd

250458.000

12-08-2025

PLAIN TOWNSHIP
FIRE STATION 122

0 8020 40

C102

UTILITY PLAN

PROPOSED LEGEND
STORM SEWER PIPE

CATCH BASIN

CURB INLET

YARD DRAIN

HEADWALL

MANHOLE

STORM SEWER CLEANOUT

DOWNSPOUT

SANITARY SEWER PIPE

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE

SANITARY SEWER CLEANOUT

WATERLINE PIPE

FIRE HYDRANT

WATER VALVE

POST INDICATOR VALVE

FIRE DEPARTMENT CONNECTION

W

STM

SAN

WAT

FDC

PIV

WV

Y

H D

CO

DS

CO

A

100

100

100

100

100



FIBER OPTICMARKER POST

FIBER PULL BOX
FIBER PULL BOX

SILT FENCE

GAS MARKER POST

GAS MARKER POST

SIGN

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC

15" PVC 15" PVC

15
" P

VC
8"

 P
VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

15
" P

VC

TOP = 1022.79'INV E = 1007.04'INV W = 1006.94'
TOP = 1026.48'INV E = 1008.08'INV W = 1008.03'

TOP = 1029.93'INV E = 1009.58'INV W = 1009.33'

TOP = 1032.26'INV N = 1010.16'INV E = 1010.11'INV W = 1010.06'
TOP = 1032.72'INV S = 1011.12'INV N = 1010.92'INV E = 1010.82'INV W = 1010.82'

TOP = 1028.64'INV N = 1010.54'INV S = 1010.44'

TOP = 1030.25'INV N = 1010.95'INV S = 1010.95'

TOP = 1028.89'INV N = 1011.44'INV S = 1011.55'

12
" C

PP

84" X 48" RCP

6" CPP

6" CPP

42
" C

PP

INV = 1028.79'

INV = 1028.46'

INV = 1025.19'
INV = 1023.92

WATER MARKER
POST

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC
IN. 202402160016227

12.737 ACRES

EDGED COLUMBUS LLC
IN. 202312290135331

14.749 ACRES

STATE OF OHIO
IN. 199908230213995

0.707 ACRES

STATE OF OHIO,
DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

IN. 200504010059337
PARCEL 17 WD
1.470 ACRES

HI
GH

W
AY

 E
AS

EM
EN

T
DB

 30
99

 P
G 

90
0.1

84
 A

CR
ES

NO
TT

IN
GH

AM
 T

RA
CE

PH
AS

E 
1

PB
 12

4 P
G 

15RESERVE "C" CITY OF NEW ALBANY
IN. 201803200036903

TH
E 

CI
TY

 O
F 

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
HI

O
IN

. 2
01

80
11

70
00

70
56

0.3
54

 A
CR

ES

6" PLASTIC GAS LINE

8" PLASTIC GAS LINE

PER TC ENERGY

GIS MAP

FIBER PULL BOX

INV = 1023.94'

INV = 1027.23'

W/L PER
RECORD

W/L PER
RECORD

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION EASEMENT

E
TRP

W

PB

T

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

TR

W
W

TR
E

PB

E

PB

PB

PB

PB

10"7"
6"5"5"4"

5"5"5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

90
' S

CP
Z

GAS MARKER POST

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX
 E

/P

EX
 E

/P

12
"

W
AT

ER
(1

1-
02

0_
01

0)

NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST

(100' R/W, PB 86 PG 78)
NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST(80' R/W, PB 107 PG 90)

N0
3°

35
'05

"E

QT
R.

 T
W

P.
 2,

 LO
T 

15
QT

R.
 T

W
P.

 1,
 LO

T 
16

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC
IN. 201803090032444

NOTTINGHAM TRACE
PHASE 1

PB 124 PG 15
LOT 58

⅊

⅊

⅊

N0
3°

48
'19

"E
    

56
8.3

2'

S85°58'00"E    728.51'

S1
6°

19
'37

"W
45

.34
'

N86°24'55"W
45.66'

N20°30'38"W
    273.41'

R=50.00'
L=78.53'

Δ=89°59'12"BEARING=S48°34'41"WCHORD=70.70'

S0
3°

35
'05

"W
    

40
0.2

4'

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

8" DEEP

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

S0
3°

35
'05

"W
    

11
6.4

7'

S29°13'56"E    92.76'

R=1350.00'
L=581.50'
Δ=24°40'46"
BEARING=S81°14'42"WCHORD=577.01'

BENCHMARK
CUT BOX ON
L-POLE BASE

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y 

CO
ND

IT
 R

OA
D

(S
R 

60
5, 

R/
W

 V
AR

IE
S,

 P
B 

86
 P

G 
79

)

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

U
E

UE

U
E

UE

O
U

Y
H

D

WV

Y

H D

WV

CO

O
U

O
U

X

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

STREAM CORRIDOR PROTECTION  ZONE (90')

STREAM CORRIDOR PROTECTION  ZONE (90')

CENTERLINE OF STREAM

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

50
' S

ET
BA

CK

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

IR
E

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G

FIRE TRUCK

AMBULANCE

50' SETBACK

PROPOSED PROPERTY SPLIT

PR
OP

 R
/W

FIRE TRUCK

12
5' 

BU
ILD

IN
G/

PA
VE

ME
NT

SE
TB

AC
K

50' SETBACK

25
0' 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
SE

TB
AC

K

G

G

G

G

G

G G G G

G G

G

G

G

G

G

G G G G G G

1025

10
21

10
22

1023

1024

1026

1020

1020

102
1

1025

1022

1023

1024

1026

10
27

10
28

10
29

102
5

10
30

102
1

10
21

10
21

10
22

1023

1024

1026

1027

10
28

10
29

1025

10
30

1026

1027

1028

1029

10
31

10
25

10
30

10
30

10
3010

26

10
27

10
28

102
9

10
29

10
29

1015

1020

1013
1014

1016
1017

1018
1019

1021
1022

1022

1023

1023

1024

1024

1025

10
26 10

27

1028

10
28

10
28

1027

1028

1029

1030 1031

1031

10
27

10
27

10
28

1028

10251026
1027

1028

5

6 7

8

9

10

2

1

4

3

10
21

10
22

10
23

10
24

SHEET NO.

SHEET NAME:

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

I 
N

 S
 P

 I
 R

 E
 D

  
  

P
 E

 O
 P

 L
 E

  
  

  
  

  
C

 R
 E

 A
 T

 I
 V

 E
  

  
D

 E
 S

 I
 G

 N
  

  
  

  
  

T
 R

 A
 N

 S
 F

 O
 R

 M
 I

 N
 G

  
  

C
 O

 M
 M

 U
 N

 I
 T

 I
 E

 S

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SEAL:

 H
:\C

ol
um

bu
s\

20
25

\2
50

45
8\

00
0\

_D
W

G
\_

Sh
ee

ts
\2

50
45

8G
R

D
00

0.
dw

g,
 1

/5
/2

02
6 

3:
01

 P
M

, K
yl

e 
W

eb
er

KLEINGERS
GROUP

THE

350 Worthington Rd

250458.000

12-08-2025

PLAIN TOWNSHIP
FIRE STATION 122

0 8020 40

C103

GRADING PLAN

GRADING LEGEND
EXISTING MAJOR CONTOUR

EXISTING MINOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MAJOR CONTOUR

PROPOSED MINOR CONTOUR

1215

1216

1215

1216



FIBER OPTICMARKER POST

FIBER PULL BOX
FIBER PULL BOX

SILT FENCE

SIGN

FIBER PULL BOX

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION
CORPORATION EASEMENT

E
TRP

W

PB

T

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

S

TR

W
W

TR
E

PB

E

PB

PB

PB

PB

10"7"
6"5"5"4"

5"5"5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

5"
5"

90
' S

CP
Z

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX E/P

EX
 E

/P

EX
 E

/P

NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST

(100' R/W, PB 86 PG 78)
NEW ALBANY ROAD EAST(80' R/W, PB 107 PG 90)

N0
3°

35
'05

"E

QT
R.

 T
W

P.
 2,

 LO
T 

15
QT

R.
 T

W
P.

 1,
 LO

T 
16

⅊

⅊

⅊

N0
3°

48
'19

"E
    

56
8.3

2'

S85°58'00"E    728.51'

S1
6°

19
'37

"W
45

.34
'

N86°24'55"W
45.66'

N20°30'38"W
    273.41'

R=50.00'
L=78.53'

Δ=89°59'12"BEARING=S48°34'41"WCHORD=70.70'

S0
3°

35
'05

"W
    

40
0.2

4'

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

8" DEEP

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

3/4" PIPE
"EMHT"

S0
3°

35
'05

"W
    

11
6.4

7'

S29°13'56"E    92.76'

R=1350.00'
L=581.50'
Δ=24°40'46"
BEARING=S81°14'42"WCHORD=577.01'

BENCHMARK
CUT BOX ON
L-POLE BASE

NE
W

 A
LB

AN
Y 

CO
ND

IT
 R

OA
D

(S
R 

60
5, 

R/
W

 V
AR

IE
S,

 P
B 

86
 P

G 
79

)

RRR

D
D

W W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

U
E

UE

U
E

UE

O
U

Y
H

D

WV

Y
H D

WV

CO

O
U

O
U

X

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

STREAM CORRIDOR PROTECTION  ZONE (90')

STREAM CORRIDOR PROTECTION  ZONE (90')

CENTERLINE OF STREAM

COLUMBIA GAS TRANSMISSION

CORPORATION EASEMENT

50
' S

ET
BA

CK

50' SETBACK

PROPOSED PROPERTY SPLIT

PR
OP

 R
/W12
5' 

BU
ILD

IN
G/

PA
VE

ME
NT

SE
TB

AC
K

50' SETBACK

25
0' 

LA
ND

SC
AP

E 
SE

TB
AC

K

G

G

G

G

G

G G G G

G G

G

G

G

G

G

G G G G G G

(1) GLE SKY

(2) VIB PRA

(1) QUE COC

(1) PIN VAN

(2) VIB PRA

(1) PIC ABI

(3) FOR LYN

(2) PIC DEN

(18) JUN SEA

(1) TIL AME

(10) HYD ILV

(18) CAL KAR

(1) QUE BIC

(2) ACE BAI

(2) PIC ABI

(2) VIB PRA

(1) CEL OCC

(1) ILE BOY

(3) PIC DEN

(1) PIC VAN

(8) HYD QUE

(2) CAR OVA

(1) PIC ABI

(3) PIC DEN

(7) VIB PRA

(2) PIN VAN

(1) QUE RUB

(1) ILE BOY

(2) QUE RUB

(3) VIB PRA

(4) FOR LYN(1) PIC ABI

(2) PIC DEN

(5) FOR LYN

(2) JUN BUR

(5) VIB PRA

(1) QUE COC

(3) VIB PRA

(1) PIC ABI

(7) HYD QUE

(3) PIC DEN

(2) QUE BIC

(5) FOR LYN

(1) ILE BOY

(3) PIC DEN

(2) PIN VAN

(3) VIB PRA

(6) FOR LYN

(2) ILE BOY

(1) JUN BUR

(3) FOR LYN

(2) HYD QUE
(1) ILE BOY

(1) JUN BUR

(1) PIN VAN

(1) CER CAN

RETENTION POND

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 F

IR
E

D
EP

AR
TM

EN
T

BU
IL

D
IN

G

(1) QUE RUB

(1) ACE BAI

(3) AME AUT

(2) ACE GRE

(1) LIQ STY

(1) TIL AME

(3) PLA OCC

(1) AME AUT

(3) ACE GRE

(1) QUE BIC

(1) AME AUT

(2) LIQ STY

(2) PLA OCC

(3) GLE TRI

(3) AME AUT

(2) LIQ STY

(2) CER CAN

(1) PLA OCC

(1) QUE BIC

(1) PLA OCC

(1) PIN VAN

(4) PIC DEN

(1) PIN VAN

(3) QUE PAL

(2) AES FLA

(1) PLA OCC

(1) CER CAN

(1) QUE PAL

(1) GLE SKY

(1) GLE SKY

NO-MOW SEED

NO-MOW SEED

NO-MOW SEED

NO-MOW SEED

L102
6DECIDUOUS TREE, TYP.

SHRUBS, PERENNIALS &
ORNAMENTAL GRASSES, TYP.

PROPERTY LINE

LEGEND

EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN,
PROTECT IN PLACE

STANDARD CONCRETE TYP,
SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS

EVERGREEN TREE, TYP. L102
5

L102
2 - 4

SHEET NO.

SHEET NAME:

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

I 
N

 S
 P

 I
 R

 E
 D

  
  

P
 E

 O
 P

 L
 E

  
  

  
  

  
C

 R
 E

 A
 T

 I
 V

 E
  

  
D

 E
 S

 I
 G

 N
  

  
  

  
  

T
 R

 A
 N

 S
 F

 O
 R

 M
 I

 N
 G

  
  

C
 O

 M
 M

 U
 N

 I
 T

 I
 E

 S

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SEAL:

 H
:\C

ol
um

bu
s\

20
25

\2
50

45
8\

00
0\

_D
W

G
\_

Sh
ee

ts
\2

50
45

8L
LN

D
00

0.
dw

g,
 1

/5
/2

02
6 

3:
01

 P
M

, K
yl

e 
W

eb
er

KLEINGERS
GROUP

THE

www.kleingers.comCIVIL ENGINEERING
SURVEYING

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

Westerville, OH 43082
614.882.4311

Suite H
350 Worthington Rd

250458.000

12-08-2025

PLAIN TOWNSHIP
FIRE STATION 122

0 8020 40

L101

PLANTING PLAN

PLANTING NOTES
1. EACH CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR LOCATING AND

PROTECTING ALL EXISTING UTILITIES.
2. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL PLANTING CONDITIONS FOR

OBSTRUCTIONS, EXISTING TREE CANOPY COVERAGE, AND
OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL POWER LINES PRIOR TO PLANTING. IF
ADVERSE PLANTING CONDITIONS ARE OBSERVED, CONTACT THE
OWNERS REPRESENTATIVE IMMEDIATELY.

3. ALL SHRUB MASSES TO BE INCORPORATED BY A CONTINUOUS
MULCH BED TO LIMITS SHOWN AND AS SPECIFIED.  MULCH BEDS
TO HAVE A NEAT, EDGED APPEARANCE.

4. SUBSURFACE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE OBSERVED.  THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT THE OHIO UTILITIES PROTECTION
SERVICE (OUPS) 48 HOURS PRIOR TO ANY EXCAVATION OR
DIGGING TO ENSURE THE LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.
IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO PROTECT
SUCH UNDERGROUND UTILITIES.

5. ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE FINE GRADED
AND SEEDED.

6. ALL TREES WITHIN A SPECIES SHALL HAVE MATCHING FORM.
7. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE THAT ALL NEWLY PLANTED

TREES ARE PERFECTLY ALIGNED AND SET PLUMB WITH PROPER
RELATIONSHIP TO THE SURROUNDING GRADE.  CONFIRM FINISHED
GRADE PRIOR TO PLANTING.

8. ALL PLANT MATERIAL SHALL BE OF THE SIZE AND TYPE SPECIFIED.
IF SUBSTITUTIONS ARE APPROVED BY THE OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE, THE SIZE AND GRADING STANDARDS SHALL
CONFORM TO THOSE OF AMERICANHORT.

9. PRIOR TO ORDERING PLANT MATERIAL, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
VERIFY ALL PLANT QUANTITIES AND NOTIFY THE LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE PLAN, LABELS,
AND PLANT SCHEDULE.

10. SEE SHEET L102 FOR PLANT SCHEDULE AND PLANTING DETAILS.



SHEET NO.

SHEET NAME:

NO. DATE DESCRIPTION

I 
N

 S
 P

 I
 R

 E
 D

  
  

P
 E

 O
 P

 L
 E

  
  

  
  

  
C

 R
 E

 A
 T

 I
 V

 E
  

  
D

 E
 S

 I
 G

 N
  

  
  

  
  

T
 R

 A
 N

 S
 F

 O
 R

 M
 I

 N
 G

  
  

C
 O

 M
 M

 U
 N

 I
 T

 I
 E

 S

SCALE:

PROJECT NO:

DATE:

SEAL:

 H
:\C

ol
um

bu
s\

20
25

\2
50

45
8\

00
0\

_D
W

G
\_

Sh
ee

ts
\2

50
45

8L
LN

D
00

0.
dw

g,
 1

/5
/2

02
6 

3:
01

 P
M

, K
yl

e 
W

eb
er

KLEINGERS
GROUP

THE

S
350 Worthington Rd

250458.000

12-08-2025

PLAIN TOWNSHIP
FIRE STATION 122

L102

PLANT SCHEDULE
& DETAILS

PLANT SCHEDULE

KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE ROOT REMARKS
DECIDUOUS TREES:

ACE BAI ACER SACCHARUM 'BAILSTA' FALL FIESTA SUGAR MAPLE 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
ACE GRE ACER SACCHARUM 'GREEN MOUNTAIN' GREEN MOUNTAIN SUGAR MAPLE 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
AES FLA AESCULUS FLAVA YELLOW BUCKEYE 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B

AME AUT AMELANCHIER x GRANDIFOLIA 'AUTUMN BRILLIANCE' AUTUMN BRILLIANCE SERVICEBERRY 7' HT. MIN. B&B MULTI-STEM
CAR OVA CARYA OVATA SHAGBARK HICKORY 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
CEL OCC CELTIS OCCIDENTALIS HACKBERRY 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
CER CAN CERCIS CANADENSIS REDBUD 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
GLE SKY GLEDITSIA TRIACANTHOS 'SKYLINE' SKYLINE HONEYLOCUST 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
LIQ STY LIQUIDAMBAR STYRACIFLUA SWEETGUM 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
PLA OCC PLATANUS OCCIDENTALIS AMERICAN SYCAMORE 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
QUE BIC QUERCUS BICOLOR SWAMP WHITE OAK 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
QUE COC QUERCUS COCCINEA SCARLET OAK 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B
QUE PAL QUERCUS PALUSTRIS PIN OAK 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B

QUE RUB QUERCUS RUBRUM RED OAK 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B STREET TREES
SHALL BE 3" CAL.

TIL AME TILIA AMERICANA AMERICAN LINDEN 2.5" CAL. MIN. B&B

EVERGREEN TREES:
JUN BUR JUNIPERUS VIRGINIANA 'BURKII' BURK JUNIPER 6' HT. MIN. B&B PLANT 8' O.C.
PIC ABI PICEA ABIES NORWAY SPRUCE 6' HT. MIN. B&B PLANT AS SHOWN
PIC DEN PICEA GLAUCA 'DENSATA' BLACK HILLS SPRUCE 6' HT. MIN. B&B PLANT15' O.C.
PIN VAN PINUS FLEXILIS 'VANDERWOLF'S PYRAMID' VANDERWOLF'S PYRAMID LIMBER PINE 6' HT. MIN. B&B PLANT12' O.C.

SHRUBS:

FOR LYN FORSYTHIA x INTERMEDIA 'LYNWOOD GOLD' LYNWOOD GOLD FORSYTHIA 30" HT. MIN. B&B PLANT 6' O.C.
HYD ILV HYDRANGEA PANICULATA 'ILVOBO' BOBO HYDRANGEA 24" HT. MIN. CONT. PLANT 3.5' O.C.
HYD QUE HYDRANGEA QUERCIFOLIA OAKLEAF HYDRANGEA 30" HT. MIN. CONT. PLANT 6' O.C.
ILE BOY ILEX x 'CHINA BOY' CHINA BOY HOLLY 30" HT. MIN. B&B PLANT 8' O.C.
JUN SEA JUNIPERUS x PFITZERIANA 'SEA GREEN' SEA GREEN JUNIPER 36" HT. MIN. B&B PLANT 5' O.C.
VIB PRA VIBURNUM x PRAGENSE PRAGUE VIBURNUM 30" HT. MIN. B&B PLANT 8' O.C.

PERENNIALS AND ORNAMENTAL GRASSES:
CAL KAR CALAMAGROSTIS x ACUTIFLORA 'KARL FOERSTER' KARL FOERSTER FEATHER REED GRASS #2 CONT. PLANT 2' O.C.

TURFGRASS SEED: SEE SPECIFICATIONS

LAWN AREA PLANTING OR MULCH AREA

N.T.S.
PLANTING BED / TREE PIT EDGING DETAIL 1

MULCH 2" DEPTH
VERTICAL EDGE

EXISTING GRADE OF
PLANTING AREA

N.T.S.
ORNAMENTAL GRASS PLANTING2

CONTAINER PLANT

SCARIFY SIDES & BOTTOM
OF ROOT SYSTEM

2" DEPTH MULCH BED

N.T.S.
SHRUB PLANTING3

2" DEPTH MULCH BED

REMOVE BURLAP FROM
UPPER 1/2  OF ROOTBALL

N.T.S.
DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING WITH WATERING DEVICE6

C
C

B

AA EDGE OF WALK OR
PLANTING BED

PLANT LOCATION60°0'0"'

D

SPACING A B C D

12" 12" 6" 10" 12"

18" 18" 8" 15 18"

24" 24" 10" 20" 24"

30" 30" 15" 25" 30"

36" 36" 18" 31" 36"

48" 48" 21" 41" 48"

N.T.S.
PLANT SPACING4

4" TY
P.

A = SPACING
B = SP/2
C = SP/1.2
D = SPACING

12
"

M
IN

.

PLANTING SOIL MIX.  MIN 3x
DIAMETER OF CONTAINER

12
"

M
IN

.

PLANTING SOIL MIX.  MIN 3x DIAMETER
OF ROOT BALL OR CONTAINER

6" M
IN

COMPACT TO PREVENT
ROOTBALL FROM SETTLING
UNDISTURBED EARTH

FINISH GRADE

2" DEPTH MULCH BED (TYP.)

DO NOT CUT MAIN LEADER

REMOVE TOP 1/2 OF BURLAP
PLANTING SOIL MIX, DIG TREE
PIT 3 TIMES THE DIAMETER OF
THE ROOT BALL

SET TRUNK PLUMB
WITH EXISTING GRADE

NOTES:
1. TOP OF ROOT BALL TO BE 2"-3" ABOVE ADJACENT FINISHED GRADE.
2. REMOVE ALL LABELS, TAGS, OR OTHER FOREIGN MATERIALS FROM LIMBS.
3. THE AMOUNT OF PRUNING SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE MINIMUM NECESSARY TO

REMOVE DEAD OR INJURED TWIGS AND BRANCHES AND TO COMPENSATE FOR THE
LOSS OF ROOTS DURING TRANSPLANTING.  RETAIN NORMAL SHAPE OF TREE.
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE WILL DETERMINE AMOUNT OF PRUNING NECESSARY.
PLANT TREES AT SAME GRADE AS GROWN IN THE NURSERY.

4. DO NOT STAKE AND GUY TREES UNLESS NEEDED FOR STABILITY BASED ON SITE
CONDITIONS OR A DIRECTED BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE .

5. PROVIDE SLOW RELEASE WATERING DEVICE.  ONE PER TREE.  REFER TO
SPECIFICATIONS.

SLOW RELEASE WATERING
DEVICE PER SPECIFICATIONS

N.T.S.
CONIFEROUS TREE PLANTING WITH WATERING DEVICE5

H
EI

G
H

T 
O

F 
TR

EE

6" M
IN

UNDISTURBED EARTH

COMPACT TO PREVENT
ROOTBALL FROM SETTLING

FINISH GRADE

2" DEPTH MULCH BED (TYP.)

SET TRUNK PLUMB
WITH EXISTING GRADE

REMOVE TOP 1/2 OF BURLAP
PLANTING SOIL MIX, DIG TREE
PIT 3 TIMES THE DIAMETER OF
THE ROOT BALL

NOTES:
1. TOP OF ROOT BALL TO BE 2"-3" ABOVE ADJACENT FINISHED GRADE.
2. REMOVE ALL LABELS, TAGS, OR OTHER FOREIGN MATERIALS FROM LIMBS.
3. THE AMOUNT OF PRUNING SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE MINIMUM NECESSARY TO

REMOVE DEAD OR INJURED TWIGS AND BRANCHES AND TO COMPENSATE FOR
THE LOSS OF ROOTS DURING TRANSPLANTING.  RETAIN NORMAL SHAPE OF
TREE.  OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE WILL DETERMINE AMOUNT OF PRUNING
NECESSARY. PLANT TREES AT SAME GRADE AS GROWN IN THE NURSERY.

4. DO NOT STAKE AND GUY TREES UNLESS NEEDED FOR STABILITY BASED ON SITE
CONDITIONS OR A DIRECTED BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

SLOW RELEASE WATERING
DEVICE PER SPECIFICATIONS

LANDSCAPE ZONING REQUIREMENTS (NEW ALBANY ZONING CODE & DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS FOR THE BUSINESS CAMPUS AT NEW ALBANY)

STREETSCAPE (1171.04) REQUIRED PROPOSED

STREET TREES
DECIDUOUS TREES INSTALLED AT 24' - 36' O.C. (3" CAL. MIN.)

LOCATE TREES MINIMUM 15' FROM HYDRANTS / UTILITY POLES
DO NOT LOCATE TREES WITHIN 25' SIGHT TRIANGLE AT INTERSECTIONS

STREET TREES PROPOSED AT 36' O.C.
NO STREET TREES SHOWN WITHIN GAS EASEMENT

SITE LANDSCAPING (1171.05(e)(3)) REQUIRED PROPOSED

LOT COVERAGE CALCULATIONS:
BUILDING:                                                9,125 SF
PAVEMENTS:                                         42,910 SF
TOTAL LOT COVERAGE:                      52,035 SF
TOTAL LOT AREA:                               276,608 SF
52,035 / 276,608 =                   18.8% COVERAGE

PROVIDE 1 TREE FOR EVERY 5,000 SF OF GROUND COVERAGE AND A TOTAL
TREE PLANTING EQUAL TO 25 INCHES + 0.5 INCH CALIPER FOR EVERY 4,000 SF

OVER 50,000 SF IN GROUND COVERAGE

52,035 SF OF COVERAGE =
11 TREES WITH TOTAL CALIPER INCHES OF 25.5

11 TREES (2.5" CAL. MIN.)

PARKING LOT (1171.06) REQUIRED PROPOSED

SCREENING PARKING LOTS SHALL BE SCREEN FROM PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF WAY WITH A 3'-6"
HIGH EVERGREEN HEDGE 36" HIGH EVERGREEN HEDGE AT TIME OF INSTALLATION

INTERIOR LANDSCAPING

PROVIDE LANDSCAPE AREAS EQUAL TO A MINIMUM OF 5% OF THE TOTAL AREA
OF PARKING LOT AREA

9,815 SF OF PARKING LOT =
491 SF OF LANDSCAPE AREA

574 SF OF LANDSCAPE AREA PROVIDED

PARKING LOT TREES
MIN. 1 TREE PER EVERY 10 SPACES (2.5" CAL. MIN.)

20 PARKING SPACES = 2 TREES
2 TREES

PERIMETER AREA REQUIRED PROPOSED

NEW ALBANY CONDIT ROAD (SR 605)
(NCBZDLT, SECTION VII, B)

WITHIN THE 55' SETBACK, PROVIDE
3' - 12' HT. MIN. EARTH MOUND (6:1 SLOPE MIN.) +

10 DECIDUOUS / EVERGREEN TREES PER 100 LF OF ROAD FRONTAGE
(70% OF TREES SHALL BE PLANTED ON THE ROAD SIDE OF THE MOUND)

297 LF - 118 (GAS EASEMENT) = 18 TREES

12 DECIDOUS TREES +
6 TREES PLACED ELSEWHERE ON SITE

NO MOUNDING PROVIDED

SIDE LOT LANDSCAPING
(DECLARATION)

4' HT. MIN. EARTH MOUND + 5 DECIDUOUS / EVERGREEN TREES PER 100 LF +
2 DECIDUOUS SHRUBS PER TREE

(80% OF THE SIDE LOT SHALL BE EVERGREEN TREES)

NORTH PROPERTY LINE: EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN
WEST PROPERTY LINE: 359 LF = 18 TREES + 36 SHRUBS

SOUTH PROPERTY LINE: 770 LF - 161 LF (GAS EASEMENT) = 31 TREES + 62
SHRUBS

WEST PROPERTY LINE: 15 EVERGREEN TREES +
3 DECIDUOUS TREES + 36 SHRUBS

MOUNDING PROVIDED

SOUTH PROPERTY LINE: 25 EVERGREEN TREES +
6 DECIDUOUS TREES + 42 SHRUBS

MOUNDING PROVIDED EXCEPT AT SE CORNER

LANDSCAPE MATERIALS (NCBZDLT, SECTION VII, J) REQUIRED PROPOSED

PLANT SIZES

DECIDUOUS TREES: 2.5" MIN. CALIPER UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED
EVERGREEN TREES: 6' HT. MIN. + 1.5" MIN. CALIPER

ORNAMENTAL TREES: 2" MIN. CALIPER
SHRUBS / HEDGES: 30" HT. MIN.

PROVIDED

WET & DRY STORMWATER BASINS (1171.08(e)) REQUIRED PROPOSED

TREES

LANDSCAPE TREATMENTS AT THE PERIMETER OF WET AND DRY STORMWATER
BASINS SHALL BE DESIGNED EITHER WITH MAINTAINED TURF TO THE POND'S
EDGE OR A NATURALIZED PLANTING OF NATIVE LANDSCAPE MATERIAL. THE

LANDSCAPE PLANTINGS SHALL BE IN LARGE MASSES AND DRIFTS, AND SHALL
NOT INCLUDE DECORATIVE LANDSCAPE BOULDERS, LARGE MULCH BEDS, OR

SPECIMEN PLANTINGS.

TREE MASSINGS PROVIDED















..
.

Designer
RDFA
Date
11/14/2025
Scale
Not to Scale
Drawing No.

Summary

1 of 1

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.6

1.6

1.3

1.2

0.9

0.7

0.5

1.5

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.9

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

2.2

3.9

0.6

0.2

5.5

0.8

1.2

1.6

1.9

1.6

1.1

0.9

0.8

1.2

1.7

2.0

1.9

1.4

0.8

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.1

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

2.2 2.2

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.8

2.3

2.1

1.7

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.8

1.9

1.9

1.7

1.9

2.3

2.0

1.5

1.2

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

1.9

1.4

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.8

1.9

1.5

1.0

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

1.6

1.3

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

1.3

1.6

1.4

0.8

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.5

1.3

1.9

1.3

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.6

0.5

1.4

2.0

1.2

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.4

1.0

1.9

2.4

2.4

2.2

1.9

1.3

1.4

2.0

1.2

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.6

1.7

4.7

5.1

5.0

5.2

1.4

1.8

1.3

1.5

1.7

1.3

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.7

2.0

1.3

1.4

2.1

1.4

1.9

1.4

1.0

2.8

4.7

5.0

4.9

3.3

2.0

1.7

1.3

0.9

1.3

1.8

2.1

2.1

1.8

1.3

1.3

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.5

1.0

1.1

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.6

1.3

1.6

1.1

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.7

1.6

2.1

1.2

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.9

2.1

2.5

1.1

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.7

1.2

2.9

4.1

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.8

1.4

4.5

5.1

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.6

5.4

5.0

0.5

0.8

1.6

5.5

3.3

0.7

1.5

3.2

1.9

0.6

1.6

2.3

1.4

1.6

2.2

1.5

1.4

2.0

1.6

1.2

1.8

1.5

1.1

1.8

1.4

1.2

1.8

1.2

0.8

1.4

1.6

0.9

0.9

1.3

1.1

0.9

1.1

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1 0.1

0.0

6.3

12.3

11.6

6.8

3.4

4.6

6.8

7.2

3.6

0.5

11.9

8.9

4.4

6.5

14.4

15.4

5.6

1.1

0.3

16.8 0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6 0.7

0.8

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.2

1.7

2.5

2.7

1.9

1.2

0.8

0.7

1.3

1.0

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.0

0.0

2.8

0.5

1.0

0.5

0.4

0.7

0.6

0.7

1.0

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.3

1.1

0.6

0.7

1.0

1.1

0.6

0.7

2.0

3.5

1.0

0.6

1.1

3.8

6.9

1.0

0.8

1.3

4.6

1.1

0.9

1.3

3.8

5.6

1.2

1.0

1.0

2.0

3.6

1.0

0.7

0.9

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.7

1.7

0.7

0.6

1.0

0.6

0.6

0.5

7.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.7

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.2

1.1

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.8

1.4

1.9

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2.5

0.5

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

2.1

1.0

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.3

0.9

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

2.9

1.2

0.8

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.5

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.1

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.7

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1 0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

3.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

1.0

1.2

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

1.1

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

1.0

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.8

1.0

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

1.0

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.7

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.6

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.7

1.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

1.2

1.5

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.9

1.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.6

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.7

P14-T4 @ 20'

P14-T2 @ 20'

P14-T2 @ 20'

P14-T2 @ 20'

P14-T2 @ 20'

P14-T2 @ 20'

A @ 15.333'

A @ 15.333'

A @ 15.333'

A @ 15.333'

A @ 15.333'

A @ 15.333'

A @ 15.333'A @ 15.333'A @ 15.333'

A @ 11'

A @ 8'

A @ 8'

P14-T4 @ 20'

P14-T4 @ 20'

P14-T2 @ 20'

Plan View

DRAFT



 
PC 26 0121 7108 Armscote End Pool Setback Variance VAR-98-2025 1 of 4 

 
 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
January 21, 2026 Meeting 

 
 

7108 ARMSCOTE END 
POOL SETBACK VARIANCE 

 
 
LOCATION:  7108 Armscote End  (PID: 222-004853) 
APPLICANT:   Steve Kidwell 
REQUEST:   Variance to the West Nine 2, Subarea C (6)(d)(vii) to reduce the required 

pool setback from any property line  
ZONING:    West Nine 2 C-PUD (Comprehensive Planned Unit Development) 
STRATEGIC PLAN: Residential 
APPLICATION: VAR-98-2025 
 
Review based on: Application materials received on December 10, 2025 
Staff report prepared by Kylie Blackburn, Planner 
 
I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  
The applicant is requesting a variance to the West Nine 2 Zoning Text to reduce the required 15-
foot pool setback to 10 feet for a new pool in the rear yard of the property. This requirement 
differs from base code 1173.02(c), which requires pools and associated patios to be 15 feet away 
from any property line.  
 
II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE  
The property is 0.33 acres and contains a single-family home. The lot is located within the New 
Albany Country Club Section 28 Ebrington. The home was built in 2018. The property is north 
of Hanbys Loop and west of Ebrington Rd and the New Albany Country Club. The property is 
surrounded by other residential properties.  
 
III. EVALUATION 
The application complies with application submittal requirements in C.O. 1113.03 and is 
considered complete. The property owners within 200 feet of the property in question have been 
notified. 
 
Criteria 
The standard for granting of an area variance is set forth in the case of Duncan v. Village of 
Middlefield, 23 Ohio St.3d 83 (1986). The Board must examine the following factors when 
deciding whether to grant a landowner an area variance: 
 
All of the factors should be considered and no single factor is dispositive.  The key to whether an 
area variance should be granted to a property owner under the “practical difficulties” standard is 
whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, is reasonable 
and practical. 

1. Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a beneficial 
use of the property without the variance. 

2. Whether the variance is substantial. 



 
PC 26 0121 7108 Armscote End Pool Setback Variance VAR-98-2025 2 of 4 

3. Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 
adjoining properties suffer a “substantial detriment.” 

4. Whether the variance would adversely affect the delivery of government services. 
5. Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 

restriction. 
6. Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a variance. 
7. Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 

whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 
 
Plus, the following criteria as established in the zoning code (Section 1113.06):  
 

8. That special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or structure 
involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the same zoning 
district. 

9. That a literal interpretation of the provisions of the Zoning Ordinance would deprive the 
applicant of rights commonly enjoyed by other properties in the same zoning district under 
the terms of the Zoning Ordinance. 

10. That the special conditions and circumstances do not result from the action of the 
applicant.  

11. That granting the variance requested will not confer on the applicant any special privilege 
that is denied by the Zoning Ordinance to other lands or structures in the same zoning 
district. 

12. That granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 
residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially detrimental 
to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements in the 
vicinity. 

IV.  ASSESSMENT  
Consideration and Basis for Decision 
Variance to West Nine 2 C-PUD Zoning Text Subarea C (6)(d)(vii) to encroach into the 15-
foot pool setback   
The following should be considered in the board’s decision: 

1. The West Nine 2 C-PUD Zoning Text Subarea C (6)(d)(vii) does not indicate that the patio 
must be 15 feet off the property line, but rather the pool (water's edge).  

2. The applicant seeks to add a pool with associated equipment and landscaping, and a 1200 
sq ft patio into the rear of the property. This variance request is to allow the pool to be 10 
feet from the side property line.   

3. There are no special conditions and circumstances that exist that are specific to this parcel 
and are not common to other properties in the zoning district. The applicant has shown 
other versions of the pool layout that would be in compliance or encroach less into the 
setback. The house and current patio are at least 35.8 feet off the rear property line with a 
13.5 foot easement off the rear property line leaving around 22 feet of usable yard depth.  

4. The proposed variance could significantly alter the character of the neighborhood or create 
a substantial detriment to adjacent properties. There are other properties in the area that 
have pools that are meeting this setback requirement for the water’s edge.  

a. The applicant has included 3 different versions of the pool layout: 
i.  Option 1 would eliminate the need for the variance but leave the pool less 

than 2 feet away from the corner of the house.  
ii. Option 2 would have the pool 12 feet away from the side property line, 

still requiring the variance, but less of an encroachment.  
iii. Option 3 would eliminate the need for a variance, but leave the rear of the 

pool at the edge of the patio.  
b. There is also the option to change the orientation of the pool which could create 

other options that would allow the pool to be installed without a variance.  



 
PC 26 0121 7108 Armscote End Pool Setback Variance VAR-98-2025 3 of 4 

5. The variance does not preserve the spirit and intent of the zoning requirement. 
The primary purpose of the setback requirement is to ensure adequate separation between 
uses on adjacent properties. Allowing the water’s edge to be closer than permitted would 
reduce the intended separation between properties. 

a. The lot located south of the subject property has not yet been developed. 
b. However, the proposed project includes the installation of code-compliant pool 

fencing and additional landscaping, which will enhance privacy and help 
maintain visual and functional separation between properties. 

6. The variance request does appear to be substantial. Allowing this variance could set a 
precedent for other properties in the area with similar lot configurations and easements, 
potentially leading to an increase in similar requests.  

7. The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons 
residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially 
detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements 
in the vicinity. 

8. This variance does not negatively impact the delivery of government services. 
 
IV. SUMMARY 
The West Nine 2 C-PUD Zoning Text prohibits pools from being located within 15 feet of any 
property line; however, the applicant is requesting a variance to allow the pool to be located within 
the required setback. Approval of this variance could establish a precedent for other properties in 
the area with similar lot configurations and easements, potentially resulting in an increase in similar 
variance requests. There are no special conditions associated with the subject property, and staff is 
not aware of any previously approved variances of a similar nature within the same zoning text. 
While the applicant proposes to install the required pool fencing and provide additional landscaping 
to help maintain visual separation between adjacent lots and uses, the spirit and intent of the 
regulation may still not be met. The applicant has demonstrated that alternative design options are 
available that would reduce or eliminate the encroachment. Additionally, staff has recommended 
reorienting the pool to allow for installation with minimal or no encroachment. 
 
V. ACTION 
Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 
following motion is appropriate. 
 
Move to approve application VAR-98-2025 based on the findings in the staff report (conditions of 
approval may be added). 
 

  



 
PC 26 0121 7108 Armscote End Pool Setback Variance VAR-98-2025 4 of 4 

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: NearMap 







Applicant: Prime Outdoor Living 

                       2020 James Pkwy Heath, Ohio 43056 

                       740-975-6000 

 

Property Address: 7108 Armscote End New Albany, Ohio 43054 

 

Legal Description: New Albany Country Club 

                                          Section 28 Part 2 

                                          Lot 65 

 

New Albany Code: 

1173.02 - PRIVATE SWIMMING POOLS. 

(c) Such pool, including any walks, paved areas, equipment, and appurtenances thereto, shall 
not be located in any front yard, nor closer than fifteen (15) feet to any property line. 

Property owners within 200’: 

Property Owner Parcel ID Address 
Eric Yang 222-004849-00 Armscote End 
Gerald Mathers 222-004850-00 7109 Armscote End 
Jesse Carmen 222-004851-00 7113 Armscote End 
John Dejohn 222-004852-00 7112 Armscote End 
Michael Bonasera 222-004853-00 7108 Armscote End 
Mark Stetson 222-004760-00 3955 Ebrington Road 
Zeyn Mirza 222-004854-00 7104 Armscote End 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The nature of the special conditions giving rise to the application for approval. 

Our plan if the variance is approved would provide safe and easy access to the pool without 
sacrificing the aesthetics of the residence or neighboring properties. We have attempted to 
alter the location of the pool multiple times within the setback, and each time it brings up 
another problem. The number one goal with the pool installation is safety for the clients 
and their friends and family. When the pool is shifted within the setback, there is not 
enough space between the house and the pool for safe passage. I have attached the 
options and circled the issues that arise. 

The size and location of existing and proposed structures.  

Provided on plans. 

The proposed use of all parts of the lots and structures, including access, walks, o -
street parking and loading spaces, and landscaping. 

This variance would allow easy access around the pool. Without the variance there is a 
safety concern for pool access and rear house exit. 

The relationship of the requested variance to the development standards. 

Currently there is a 15’ setback required for inground pools and the walkways around. We 
are requesting a 9’ variance. 

The use of land and location of structures on adjacent property. 

The property currently has an empty lot on the South side. 

The use for which variance/appeal is sought. 

We are applying for a variance to change the side yard setback from 15’ to 6’. This is to 
provide enough room for a small/medium size inground pool.  

 

Details of the variance/appeal and the grounds on which it is claimed it should be 
granted, as the case may be. The statement should consider these factors, which are 
considerations made by the Board of Zoning Appeals and planning sta :  

• Whether the area zoning requirement, as applied to the property owner in question, 
is reasonable and practical. 

The variance would provide safe and easy access to all 4 sides of the pool. Without the 
variance 2 sides of the pool could not be accessed in a quick and safe manner.  



 • Whether the property will yield a reasonable return or whether there can be a 
beneficial use of the property without the variance.  

Without the variance, the pool would be placed with 1’6” of the corner of the house which 
would cause many problems. 

• Whether the variance is substantial.  

This would be a minor change. 

• Whether the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered 
or adjoining properties su er a “substantial detriment.”  

The client’s property currently has mature evergreen trees that wont be damaged during 
construction so the neighboring property won’t be a ected negatively. 

• Whether the variance would adversely a ect the delivery of government services.  

No. 

• Whether the property owner purchased the property with knowledge of the zoning 
restriction.  

No. 

• Whether the problem can be solved by some manner other than the granting of a 
variance. 

No, If the pool is shifted to align with the setback, it will only allow 1’6” of space between 
the corner of the pool and the house foundation.  

• Whether the variance preserves the “spirit and intent” of the zoning requirement and 
whether “substantial justice” would be done by granting the variance. 

Yes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

Specific reasons why the variance/appeal is justified according to the Ordinance. The 
statement should respond to these criteria for approval from C.O. 1113.06:  

• Special conditions and circumstances exist which are peculiar to the land or 
structure involved and which are not applicable to other lands or structures in the 
same zoning district.  

The layout of the client’s house doesn’t allow us to shift the pool to the north without 
getting too close to the house itself. There are at least 2 residences in the immediate area 
around the client’s property that do have pools and their surrounding walkways/patios 
within 15’ of property lines. 







XISTING ARBORVITAE
LONG PROPERTY LINE

NEW ARBORVITAE
ALONG EASEMENT

LINE

PO

SANITARY SEWER
 LOCATIONLOCATION

AR

 PROPERTY LINE

60" BLACK
ALUMINUM FENCE

22'-717 2"

15'-0"5 0

1'-97
8" CORNER OF HOUSE

15'-0"

DESCRIPTION1 YYYY/MM/DD

Revision/IssueNo. Date

Scale

Project

Date

Sheet

INGROUND POOL

09/06/2025

PRIME OUTDOOR LIVING
2020 JAMES PKWY
HEATH, OHIO 43056

740-975-6000
STEVE@POOLSBYPRIME.COM
WWW.POOLSBYPRIME.COM

Designed By:

KRISTIN & COREY HEIT

INGROUND POOL/PATIO

7108 ARMSCOTE END
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

Project/Client:

1:###
L#

SHEET
DESCRIPTION

Option 1



TING ARBORVITAE
NG PROPERTY LINE

NEW ARBORVITAE
ALONG EASEMENT

LINE

1200 SQ FT NEW PATIO
OBERFIELDS MANHATTAN GRANITEE

POOL 

SANITARY SEWER
 LOCATIONLOCATION

ARBO
 PO

PROPERTY LINE

60" BLACK
ALUMINUM FENCE

20'-717 2"

15'-0"5 0

5'-61
8""

12'-0"

DESCRIPTION1 YYYY/MM/DD

Revision/IssueNo. Date

Scale

Project

Date

Sheet

INGROUND POOL

09/06/2025

PRIME OUTDOOR LIVING
2020 JAMES PKWY
HEATH, OHIO 43056

740-975-6000
STEVE@POOLSBYPRIME.COM
WWW.POOLSBYPRIME.COM

Designed By:

KRISTIN & COREY HEIT

INGROUND POOL/PATIO

7108 ARMSCOTE END
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

Project/Client:

1:###
L#

SHEET
DESCRIPTION

Option 2 



TING ARBORVITAE
NG PROPERTY LINE

NEW ARBORVITAE
ALONG EASEMENT

LINE

1200 SQ FT NEW PATIO
OBERFIELDS MANHATTAN GRANITEE

POOL 

SANITARY SEWER
 LOCATIONLOCATION

ARBO
 PO

PROPERTY LINE

60" BLACK
ALUMINUM FENCE

15'-88188 4"15'-0"5 0

15'-0"

DESCRIPTION1 YYYY/MM/DD

Revision/IssueNo. Date

Scale

Project

Date

Sheet

INGROUND POOL

09/06/2025

PRIME OUTDOOR LIVING
2020 JAMES PKWY
HEATH, OHIO 43056

740-975-6000
STEVE@POOLSBYPRIME.COM
WWW.POOLSBYPRIME.COM

Designed By:

KRISTIN & COREY HEIT

INGROUND POOL/PATIO

7108 ARMSCOTE END
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

Project/Client:

1:###
L#

SHEET
DESCRIPTION

Option 3



EXISTING ARBORVITAE
ALONG PROPERTY LINE

NEW ARBORVITAE
ALONG EASEMENT

LINE

1200 SQ FT NEW PATIO
OBERFIELDS MANHATTAN GRANITE

POOL EQUIPMENT

SANITARY SEWER
 LOCATION

ARBOR VITAE AROUND
 POOL EQUIPMENT

 PROPERTY LINE

48" BLACK
ALUMINUM FENCE

10'-0"

22'-71
2"

15'-0"

7'-61
8"

3'-23
8"

General Notes

Scale

Project

Date

Sheet

INGROUND POOL

10/13/2025

DESCRIPTION1 YYYY/MM/DD

Revision/IssueNo. Date

PRIME OUTDOOR LIVING INC.
2020 JAMES PKWY
HEATH, OHIO 43056
740.975.6000
STEVE@POOLSBYPRIME.COM
WWW.POOLSBYPRIME.COM

Designed By:

KRISTIN & COREY HEIT

INGROUND POOL/PATIO/LANDSCAPE

7108 ARMSCOTE ROAD
NEW ALBANY OHIO, 43054

Project/Client:

1:###
L#

SHEET
DESCRIPTION

Proposed



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 1 of 11 

 
  
 
 

 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

January 21, 2026 Meeting 
 
 

CME CREDIT UNION AND CRIMPSON CUP COFFEE SHOP 
FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN EXTENSION 

 
 
LOCATION:  Located at the southwest corner of Beech Road NW and Smith’s Mill 

Road (PID: 093-106512-00.011) 
APPLICANT:   Tom Newcomb 
REQUEST: Final Development Plan Extension 
ZONING:   Beech Crossing I-PUD 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Retail 
APPLICATION: FDP-97-2025 
 
Review based on application materials received December 3, 2025. 
Original staff report prepared by Chelsea Nichols, Planner 
Updated staff report prepared by Lauren Sauter, Planner 
 
I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND – UPDATE: 
The applicant requests extension of the approval of a final development plan for a proposed CME 
credit union and Crimson Cup coffee shop with drive-throughs located at the southwest corner of 
Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road. 
 
The Planning Commission approved this application with conditions at its hearing on November 
20, 2023 (FDP-77-2023). According to C.O. Section 1159.11, if construction has not begun 
within two years of approval of the final development plan, all approvals shall be invalidated and 
canceled, and such two-year period may be extended by the commission for good cause. The 
applicant requests this extension. The proposed development has not been modified from its 
original approval; as such, the conditions of approval remain unchanged. The conditions of the 
original submittal would still apply and should be included in the motion. 
 
The Planning Commission additionally approved an associated variance (VAR-79-2023) to 
eliminate the requirement that buildings have operable and active front doors along all public and 
private roads. The variance approval has not expired. 
 
The subject property is zoned for Infill Planned Unit Development (I-PUD) and is located within 
the Beech Crossing Zoning District, which was reviewed and approved by the Planning 
Commission on January 22, 2020 (ZC-102-2019).  
 
II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 
The site is generally located north of State Route 161, south of Smith’s Mill Road and west of 
Beech Road. The site is approximately 2.03 acres and is currently undeveloped. The Planning 
Commission approved final development plan applications for Duke and Duchess on October 20, 
2020; Holiday Inn Express on February 19, 2020; and Taco Bell on August 21, 2023. 
 
The zoning text permits most uses described by C.O. 1149, C-3, Highway Business District. The 
permitted uses within this zoning district include any use specified as a permitted or conditional 
use in the C-2 District. As such, although a drive-through for a bank is a conditional use in the C-



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 2 of 11 

2 District, it is considered a permitted use in the C-3 District. The bank, coffee shop, and coffee 
shop drive-through are all permitted uses for this zoning district as well. 
 
III. EVALUATION 
Staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations. 
Primary concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended 
action in underlined text. Planning Commission’s review authority is found under Chapter 1159. 
 
The Commission should consider, at a minimum, the following (per Section 1159.08): 

a. That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 
applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

b. That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan/Rocky 
Fork-Blacklick Accord or portion thereof as it may apply; 

c. That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 
d. That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify 

the deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning 
Ordinance; 

e. Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 
f. Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such 

other facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density may not 
violate any contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in effect; 

g. Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness 
to existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

h. Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 
i. Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development 

periphery; 
j. Gross commercial building area; 
k. Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 
l. Spaces between buildings and open areas; 
m. Width of streets in the project; 
n. Setbacks from streets; 
o. Off-street parking and loading standards; 
p. The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi-phase 

developments; 
q. The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 
r. The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency’s 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit 

(if required);  
s. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 

 
It is also important to evaluate the PUD portion based on purpose and intent. Per Section 1159.02, 
PUDs are intended to: 

a. Ensure that future growth and development occurs in general accordance with the 
Strategic Plan; 

b. Minimize adverse impacts of development on the environment by preserving native 
vegetation, wetlands and protected animal species to the greatest extent possible 

c. Increase and promote the use of pedestrian paths, bicycle routes and other non-vehicular 
modes of transportation; 

d. Result in a desirable environment with more amenities than would be possible through 
the strict application of the minimum commitment to standards of a standard zoning 
district; 

e. Provide for an efficient use of land, and public resources, resulting in co-location of 
harmonious uses to share facilities and services and a logical network of utilities and 
streets, thereby lowering public and private development costs; 

f. Foster the safe, efficient and economic use of land, transportation, public facilities and 
services; 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 3 of 11 

g. Encourage concentrated land use patterns which decrease the length of automobile 
travel, encourage public transportation, allow trip consolidation and encourage 
pedestrian circulation between land uses; 

h. Enhance the appearance of the land through preservation of natural features, the 
provision of underground utilities, where possible, and the provision of recreation areas 
and open space in excess of existing standards; 

i. Avoid the inappropriate development of lands and provide for adequate drainage and 
reduction of flood damage; 

j. Ensure a more rational and compatible relationship between residential and non-
residential uses for the mutual benefit of all; 

k. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding areas; and 
l. Provide for innovations in land development, especially for affordable housing and infill 

development. 
 
Engage New Albany Strategic Plan Recommendations 
The Engage New Albany strategic plan recommends the following development standards for the 
Retail future land use category: 

1. Parking areas should promote pedestrians by including walkways and landscaping to 
enhance visual aspects of the development.  

2. Combined curb cuts and cross access easements are encouraged.  
3. Curb cuts on primary streets should be minimized and well-organized connections should 

be created within and between all retail establishments.  
4. Combined curb cuts and cross-access easements between parking areas are preferred 

between individual buildings. 
5. Retail building entrances should connect with the pedestrian network and promote 

connectivity through the site.  
6. Integrate outdoor spaces for food related businesses.  

 
A. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The proposed coffee shop with drive-through is a permitted use as a carry-out food and 
beverage establishment with drive-through facility. The proposed bank is permitted as a 
personal service. The drive-through associated with the bank is also a permitted use.  

2. The applicant proposes to develop a 4,419-square-foot CME credit union and Crimson 
Cup coffee shop with drive-throughs. 

a. The credit union floor area is 1,309 square feet. 
b. The coffee shop floor area is 894 square feet. 
c. The shared space floor area is 2,216 square feet. 

3. The I-PUD zoning text requires the following setbacks from these perimeter boundaries: 
a. Beech Road: 

i. Required minimum: 40-foot pavement and 75-foot building setback. 
ii. Proposed: 41.74+/- foot pavement and 112.24+/- foot building setback—

meets code. 
b. Smith’s Mill Road: 

i. Required minimum: 55-foot pavement and 75-foot building setback. 
ii. Proposed: 65+/- foot pavement and 135.5+/- foot building setback—

meets code. 
c. Internal parcel boundaries (southern and western property lines):     

i. Required minimum: 10-foot pavement and building setback. 
ii. Proposed (western property line): 11.9-foot pavement and 118.9-foot 

building setback—meets code. 
iii. Proposed (southern property line): 8.5+/- feet pavement and 65-foot 

building setback. The building setback requirement is met, but the 
pavement setback requirement is not met. A variance has not been 
requested. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the site plan be 
revised so that the pavement is at least 10 feet away from the southern 
property line at the time of permitting (condition #1). 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 4 of 11 

d. Outparcel Access Road (Beech Crossing):   
i. Required minimum: 15-foot building and pavement setback. 

ii. Proposed:  50+/- foot pavement (not counting drive aisle to enter the site) 
and 133+/- foot building setback—meets code. 

4. The development site is accessed by a private road, which was reviewed and approved by 
the Planning Commission on October 21, 2019 (FDP-72-2019). This private road, Beech 
Crossing, was constructed by another private developer and includes street trees and a 
sidewalk along the road.  

5. According to zoning text section C(1), the applicant is required to install a leisure trail 
along Smith’s Mill Road. The site plan meets this standard by providing an eight-foot-
wide leisure trail within the front yard of the lot along Smith’s Mill Road. 

6. Per zoning text section C(4), the applicant is required to connect into the existing 
pedestrian circulation system. The applicant is meeting this requirement by providing a 
direct connection into the future leisure trail along Smith’s Mill Road, in addition to the 
existing leisure trail along Beech Road and the existing sidewalk along Beech Crossing. 

7.  The zoning text requires that the total lot coverage, which includes all areas of pavement 
and building, not exceed 80 percent of the total area. The proposed development is at 54 
percent lot coverage, thereby meeting this requirement.  

8. The Beech Crossing I-PUD zoning text places a limitation on total acreage that can be 
utilized for retail uses in the Beech Road / Smith’s Mill Road area. The intent is to limit 
retail development to a maximum of 92 acres in this general area. Once 92 acres have 
been developed with retail uses found in the C-3 and GE zoning districts, the remainder 
of the land from all of these subareas can only allow non-retail General Employment 
(GE) zoning district uses listed in their respective zoning texts. This 2.03-acre 
development is subject to this overall 92-acre retail limitation.  

 
B. Access, Loading, Parking 

1. The site is accessed from one full-access curb-cut along Beech Crossing, which is near 
the southwest corner of the property. The site layout consists of two-way vehicular traffic 
traveling around three of the four sides of the building and the drive-through on the south 
side of the building. A dumpster, enclosure, and loading area are located toward the 
interior of the site, out of view from traffic on Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road. There 
are pedestrian entrances along Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road as well as on the west 
elevation. 

2. The city engineer comments that the one-way lanes could potentially conflict with 
southbound circulation and for cars backing out of the first parking space. To remedy this 
comment, staff recommends a condition of approval that a private traffic circle be added 
to the site as suggested in the engineering comments and exhibit (and image below). The 
curb should be six-inch mountable curbs so as to not negatively affect fire truck turning 
(condition #2). 

 
Image: Markup of condition #2. 

 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 5 of 11 

3. Staff recommends a condition of approval that signage is installed to avoid improper 
vehicular circulation (i.e. right turns across entry drives in an effort to exit the site onto 
Beech Crossing). This shall be addressed at the time of permitting, subject to staff 
approval (condition #3). 

4. The city parking code (C.O. 1167) contains the following parking standards for coffee 
shops associated with a bank use: 

a. The bank requires one parking space per 200 square feet of gross floor area. The 
credit union area is calculated to be 2,417 square feet (1,309 square feet plus half 
of the shared floor area, which is 1,108 square feet), which necessitates 13 
parking spaces for the credit union. 

b. The coffee shop requires one parking space for each 75 square feet of gross floor 
area. The coffee shop area is calculated to be 2,002 square feet (894 square feet 
plus half of the shared floor area, which is 1,108 square feet), which necessitates 
27 parking spaces for the coffee shop. 

c. In total, 40 parking spaces are required for the proposed development. The 
applicant is providing 43 parking spaces. 

d. The bank drive-through requires stacking spaces equal to 80 percent of the 
required number of parking spaces, which necessitates 11 stacking spaces. The 
proposal appears to include 11 stacking spaces for the credit union and meets 
requirements. 

e. The coffee shop drive-through requires stacking spaces equal to 25 percent of the 
required number of parking spaces, which necessitates seven stacking spaces. 
The proposal appears to include 10 stacking spaces for the coffee shop and meets 
requirements. 

5. Per C.O. 1167.03(a), the minimum parking space dimensions must be a minimum of nine 
feet wide and 19 feet long. The applicant is meeting this requirement. 

6. Per C.O. 1167.03(a), the minimum maneuvering lane width size must be 22 feet for this 
development type. The applicant is exceeding this requirement with a 24-foot width. 

 
C. Architectural Standards  

1. The purpose of the New Albany Design Guidelines and Requirements (DGR) is to help 
ensure that the New Albany community enjoys the highest possible quality of 
architectural design. In addition to architectural standards contained in the zoning text, 
the site is regulated by DGR Section 6: Commercial Outside Village Center. 

2. The zoning text states that retail buildings shall be a minimum of one story and a 
maximum of two stories in height. This requirement is being met, as the building is a 
one-story building. 

3. The primary building material is brick, which is a permitted building material in the 
zoning text. 

4. Zoning text section E.4(b) states that all rooftop mechanical units must be screened to 
limit off-site visibility and sound. The applicant meets this requirement. 

5. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(4) states that the number, location, spacing, and shapes of window 
openings shall be carefully considered, particularly for buildings in retail use, and shall 
impart a sense of human scale. The applicant meets this requirement by designing the 
windows with consistent spacing and shapes. The number and location of the windows 
are also appropriate. 

6. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(6) states that all visible elevations of a building must receive 
similar treatments in style, materials, and design so that no visible side is of a lesser 
character than any other. The applicant is meeting this requirement by using the same 
materials on all building elevations. 

7. C.O. 1149.04 states dumpsters are to be located as to effectively be screened from view. 
The applicant is meeting this standard. 

8. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(12) states that buildings shall have active and operable front doors 
along all public and private streets. The building fronts onto Smith’s Mill Road to the 
north, Beech Road to the east, and Beech Crossing to the southwest. There is an active 
and operable front door fronting Beech Road and Smith’s Mill Road; however, there is 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 6 of 11 

not an active and operable front door facing Beech Crossing. The Planning Commission 
approved a variance to allow no active and operable front doors on the Beech Crossing 
frontage at its hearing on November 20, 2023, under case VAR-79-2023. 
 

D. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  
1. Per Beech Crossing zoning text requirement G(3)(a), a four-board horse fence is required 

to be installed along Smith’s Mill Road. This requirement is met. 
2. Per zoning text requirement G(8), a master landscape plan shall be completed as part of 

the first final development plan that is submitted for a property located west of the 
previously approved “Outparcel Access Road,” which is the existing Beech Crossing. 
This landscape plan is subject to the review and approval of the city landscape architect. 
The property owner had submitted the plan, and it had been approved by the city 
landscape architect ahead of the future Taco Bell site to the west. The landscape 
standards established along Smith’s Mill Road and Beech Road surround the proposed 
site to the north and east.   

3. Per zoning text requirement (G)(3)(b)(i), a minimum of six trees per 100 lineal feet must 
be installed within the required setback area along Smith’s Mill Road and along Beech 
Road. This requirement is being met. 

4. Per zoning text requirement G(3)(c), a minimum 3.5-foot-tall landscape buffer must be 
provided to screen parking areas along all public rights of way. The proposed landscape 
plan shows a 3.5-foot-tall landscape buffer along the parking areas that are along public 
rights of way; therefore, this requirement is being met. 

5. Per zoning text requirement G(3)(d), a landscape buffer is required to be installed within 
the required setback of any interior side parcel line and shall consist of a 10-foot 
landscape buffer with grass and landscaping and deciduous trees planted at a rate of four 
trees for every 100 feet of side property line and deciduous shrubs must be planted under 
the trees. The applicant proposes to install these 10 trees and shrubs along the west side 
within the 10-foot setback. Therefore, this requirement is being met. 

6. Per zoning text requirement G(5), street trees shall be planted at a rate of one tree for 
every 30 feet of street frontage. Trees shall be regularly spaced along Beech Road and 
Smith’s Mill Road. The proposed landscape plan shows the existing street trees along 
Beech Road and the proposed nine trees along Smith’s Mill Road; therefore, this 
requirement is being met. 

7. Per zoning text requirement G(7), a minimum of one tree for every 10 parking spaces is 
required, and at least five percent of the vehicular use area shall be landscaped. The 
applicant is providing 43 parking spaces and is meeting this requirement by providing 
five trees. In addition, over five percent of the total parking area is landscaped. This 
requirement is being met. 

 
E. Lighting & Signage 
1. Section II(H)(1) of the zoning text requires all parking lot light poles to be downcast and 

use cut-off type fixtures in order to minimize light spilling beyond the boundaries of the 
site. The proposed light fixtures match the existing Duke and Duchess site with the 
development and meets the requirements. In addition, a detailed photometric plan was 
submitted showing that there is no light spillage from this site. 

2. Section II(H)(3) states that all parking lot poles within the entire zoning district shall be 
black or New Albany Green, be constructed of metal, and not exceed 30 feet in height. 
Staff recommends this site uses the same black metal poles that are installed at the 
existing Duke and Duchess site so there is consistent and cohesive lighting within the 
development. As such, staff recommends a condition of approval that all parking lot light 
poles are black metal, are to not exceed 30 feet in height, and are subject to staff approval 
at the time of permitting (condition #4). 

3. The applicant requests to install a drive-through menu board sign for the coffee shop. 
Drive-through menu board signs are permitted, and code states drive-through menu board 
signs shall not be visible from the public right-of-way. The development plan shows the 
drive-through menu board sign on the western side of the site, behind the building; the 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 7 of 11 

sign location meets code. 
4. Details for the proposed monument sign have not been provided. Staff recommends a 

condition of approval that all other sign details be subject to staff approval and must meet 
code requirements (condition #5). Additionally, staff recommends a condition of 
approval that should any additional variances needed other than what is included in 
application VAR-79-2023, they must be subject to the review and approval of the 
Planning Commission at a later date (condition #6). 
 
Wall Signs  

1. The zoning text and C.O. 1169.15(d) permit one wall sign per tenant on each of the 
building frontages, either on a public or private road, with one square foot in area per 
linear square foot of building frontage, not to exceed 50 square feet. 

2. This building has two tenants and three building frontages. This permits the building to 
have one wall sign per tenant on each of the three building frontages. 

3. Based on the architectural elevations, the applicant proposes one wall sign on the north 
elevation, four on the west elevation, and two on the east elevation. The west elevation 
currently shows one sign for the credit union and three signs for the coffee shop, where 
one sign displays the shop name and the other two identify the drive-through. The 
western elevation should be revised to show only one sign per tenant, as permitted by 
code; as such, staff recommends a condition of approval that all signage be revised to 
meet code requirements, subject to staff approval (condition #5). 

4. As shown on the architectural elevation sheets, the following wall signs are proposed. 
Some details are not specified or do not meet city code requirements; staff recommends a 
condition of approval that all signage be revised to meet code requirements, subject to 
staff approval (condition #5). The signage specifications that require revision or 
specification are underlined. 

 
Smith’s Mill Road northern elevation wall sign for CME: 
The wall sign reads “CME Federal Credit Union” and features the company logo. 

a. Lettering height: information not provided (maximum of 24 inches); see 
condition #5. 

b. Area: information not provided (maximum 50 square feet); see condition #5. 
c. Location: northern elevation along Smith’s Mill Road—meets code. 
d. Lighting: external—meets code. 
e. Relief: information not provided (minimum one-inch relief); see condition #5. 
f. Projection: information not provided (maximum 18 inches from building); see 

condition #5. 
g. Colors: five—does not meet code (maximum of four colors); see condition #5. 
h. Material: information not provided (must meet requirements of C.O. 1169); see 

condition #5. 
 

 
Image: North elevation, with one proposed wall sign. 

 
Beech Road eastern elevation wall sign for CME: 
The wall sign reads “CME Federal Credit Union” and features the company logo. 

a. Lettering height: information not provided (maximum of 24 inches); see 
condition #5. 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 8 of 11 

b. Area: information not provided (maximum 50 square feet); see condition #5. 
c. Location: eastern elevation along Beech Road—meets code. 
d. Lighting: external—meets code. 
e. Relief: information not provided (minimum one-inch relief); see condition #5. 
f. Projection: information not provided (maximum 18 inches from building); see 

condition #5. 
g. Colors: five—does not meet code (maximum of four colors); see condition #5. 
h. Material: information not provided (must meet requirements of C.O. 1169); see 

condition #5. 
 

Beech Road eastern elevation wall sign for Crimson Cup: 
The wall sign reads “Crimson Cup coffee & tea.” 

a. Lettering height: information not provided (maximum of 24 inches); see 
condition #5. 

b. Area: information not provided (maximum 50 square feet); see condition #5. 
c. Location: eastern elevation along Beech Road—meets code. 
d. Lighting: external—meets code. 
e. Relief: information not provided (minimum one-inch relief); see condition #5. 
f. Projection: information not provided (maximum 18 inches from building); see 

condition #5. 
g. Colors: two—meets code (maximum of four colors). 
h. Material: information not provided (must meet requirements of C.O. 1169); see 

condition #5. 

 
Image: Eastern elevation, with two proposed wall signs and an address sign. 

 
Beech Crossing western elevation wall sign for CME: 
The wall sign reads “CME Federal Credit Union” and features the company logo. 

a. Lettering height: information not provided (maximum of 24 inches); see 
condition #5. 

b. Area: information not provided (maximum 50 square feet); see condition #5. 
c. Location: facing northern elevation along Beech Crossing—meets code. 
d. Lighting: external—meets code 
e. Projection: information not provided (maximum 18 inches from building); see 

condition #5. 
f. Relief: information not provided (minimum one-inch relief); see condition #5. 
g. Colors: five—does not meet code (maximum of four colors); see condition #5. 
h. Material: information not provided (must meet requirements of C.O. 1169); see 

condition #5. 
 

Beech Crossing western elevation wall sign for Crimson Cup: 
The wall sign reads “Crimson Cup coffee & tea.” 

a. Lettering height: information not provided (maximum of 24 inches); see 
condition #5. 

b. Area: information not provided (maximum 50 square feet); see condition #5. 
c. Location: facing eastern elevation along Beech Crossing—meets code. 
d. Lighting: external—meets code. 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 9 of 11 

e. Relief: information not provided (minimum one-inch relief); see condition #5. 
f. Projection: information not provided (maximum 18 inches from building); see 

condition #5. 
g. Colors: two—meets code (maximum of four colors). 
h. Material: information not provided (must meet requirements of C.O. 1169); see 

condition #5. 
 

 
Image: Western elevation. 

 
Beech Road eastern elevation address sign 

a. Projection: information not provided (maximum six inches); see condition #5. 
b. Quantity: one—meets code (one per building). 
c. Area: information not provided (maximum four square feet); see condition #5. 
d. Width: information not provided (maximum five feet in any direction); see 

condition #5. 
e. Lighting: none—meets code. 

 
IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 
The City Engineer has reviewed the application and provided the following comments. These 
comments can also be found in a separate memo attached to this staff report. Staff recommends a 
condition of approval that the comments of the city engineer are addressed, subject to staff 
approval (condition #8). 

1. Refer to Exhibit A, note block 1.1.1. Delete the 2023 Specifications note block shown on 
sheet G.S. and add note 1.1.1 in its place. 

2. Refer to sheet C1.01. Show the location of the stop bar and stop sign at the curb cut and 
provide a cross walk and signage that meets ADA requirements. 

3. Refer to Exhibit B. Revise sheet C1.01 in accordance with this Exhibit.  Consider 
mountable curb where concrete curb is proposed. 

4. Refer to sheet L1.00. Provide a site distance triangle at the Beech Crossing curb cut and 
evaluate site distance relative to existing and proposed landscaping.  Remove landscaping 
that may impede motorist view. 

5. Provide parking lot lighting photometric analysis for staff review and approval. 
6. Provide fire truck turning radius analysis. 
7. In accordance with code sections 1159.07 (b)(3) sections Z. and AA, provide 

documentation indicating that all OPEA or ACOE issues have been addressed. 
8. We will evaluate storm water management, water distribution, sanitary sewer collection 

and roadway construction related details once construction plans become available. 
 
V. SUMMARY 
The proposed use is appropriate for this site given its proximity to State Route 161 and the New 
Albany International Business Park. This site, and the Beech Crossing development, is auto-
oriented but still incorporates strong pedestrian connectivity. The use appears to be appropriate 
and with the revisions the applicant has made to the site plan, the building is appropriately 
oriented to the public streets.  
 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 10 of 11 

The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan recommends retail sites have a strong street presence and 
include architectural and landscaping features that respond to the existing New Albany character. 
Ensuring a strong street presence that appropriately addresses the intersection is important since 
the site is located at a prominent gateway into the city and business park. The building orientation 
has been updated in the current plan to better align with New Albany’s principle planning 
standards found in the city codes and plans. 
 
The building is surrounded by the parking lot, a drive-thru lane and internal drive aisles. With the 
addition of the traffic circle, vehicles will be able to safely traverse throughout the site, and 
results in a strong circulation plan. The drive-through appears to be appropriately positioned on 
the site where it does not interfere with traffic on the rest of the site and will not cause traffic to 
back up onto the private road. By having a one-way drive aisle on just one side of the building, 
the site layout provides desirable and convenient circulation.  
 
The updated site plan also provides a strong landscape plan that exceeds code standards. The plan 
also provides space for a future gateway feature at the corner of this prominent corner of the city.  
 
V.  ACTION 
Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 
following motion would be appropriate:  
 
Move to approve final development plan application FDP-97-2025, subject to the following 
conditions: 
1. The site plan shall be revised so that the pavement is at least 10 feet away from the 

southern property line at the time of permitting. 
2. A private traffic circle shall be added to the site as suggested in the engineering comments 

and exhibit. The curb should be six-inch mountable curbs as to not negatively affect fire 
truck turning. 

3. Signage shall be installed to avoid improper vehicular circulation (i.e. right turns across 
entry drives in an effort to exit the site onto Beech Crossing). This shall be addressed at 
the time of permitting, subject to staff approval. 

4. All parking lot light poles shall match the neighboring Duke and Duchess, be colored 
black, and not exceed 30 feet in height, and are subject to staff approval at the time of 
permitting. 

5. All sign details are subject to staff approval at the time of permitting and all signage shall 
be revised to meet code requirements, subject to staff approval. 

6. Should any additional variances be needed other than what is included in application 
VAR-79-2023, they must be subject to the review and approval of the Planning 
Commission at a later date. 

7. The city engineer’s comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



PC 26 0121 CME & Crimson Cup Final Development Plan Extension FDP-97-2025 11 of 11 

 
Approximate Site Location 
 

 
Source: NearMap 





 

  
 

 
 
Monday, December 1, 2025 
New Albany Planning Commission 
City of New Albany 
99 W. Main St. 
P.O Box 188 
New Albany, OH 43054 
614-939-2254 
 
Dear Planning Commission Members, 
 
This letter is a request for an extension on the conditional approval for final development 
plan, PLFDP20230077. The request for a conditional use to construct a drive through 
located at the southwest corner of Beech Rd NW and Smith’s Mill Rd. The original 
approval was granted on Nov 20, 2023 and was recorded on Nov 21, 2023.  
 
Ongoing contractual discussions between the owner and tenant have delayed the 
construction process. We are requesting an extension to ensure that the project can 
proceed to completion. Construction is anticipated to begin in 2026. 
 
We kindly request that the Planning Commission consider granting this extension in 
accordance with code 1115.07 for an additional period of 1 year. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Regards, 
Tom Newcomb 



2023 SPECIFICATIONS

CME FEDERAL CREDIT UNION
CITY OF NEW ALBANY

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SMITHS MILL & BEECH ROAD
LICKING & FRANKLIN COUNTY, OHIO

 ISSUED:  10/31/2023SITE PLAN LEGEND
EXISTING PROPOSED

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
CO

VR
 -

 2
3-

00
17

2-
01

0 
- 

10
/3

1/
20

23
 2

:4
1:

50
 P

M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

COVER SHEET

G.S.

PROJECT LOCATION

LOCATION  MAP

PLANS PREPARED AND RECOMMENDED BY:

SCALE: NTS

INDEX OF SHEETS





BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN NOTES
E:

\N
EW

G
RO

U
N

D\
23

-0
01

72
-0

10
 C

M
E 

FE
DE

RA
L 

CR
ED

IT
 U

N
IO

N
-N

EW
 A

LB
AN

Y\
CA

DD
\D

EL
IV

ER
AB

LE
\Z

XC
O

N
 -

 2
3-

00
17

2-
01

0 
- 

8/
18

/2
02

3 
1:

33
:3

6 
PM

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
08/18/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

EXISTING CONDITIONS
PLAN

V1.00

EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN LEGEND



PROP. BUILDING

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU
CREDIT

UNION
DRIVE-THRU

CREDIT
UNIO

N
DRIVE-THRU

ATM
DRIVE-THRU

BY-PASS
LANE

COFFEE
DRIVE-THRU

BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SITE LAYOUT PLAN LEGEND
E:

\N
EW

G
RO

U
N

D\
23

-0
01

72
-0

10
 C

M
E 

FE
DE

RA
L 

CR
ED

IT
 U

N
IO

N
-N

EW
 A

LB
AN

Y\
CA

DD
\D

EL
IV

ER
AB

LE
\Z

LA
YT

 -
 2

3-
00

17
2-

01
0  

- 
10

/3
1/

20
23

 3
:1

0:
51

 P
M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

FINAL DEVELOPMENT
PLAN

C1.01

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

MONUMENTATION

SITE DATA TABLE

NOTES

APPROVALS:

→

→



PROP. BUILDING

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU
CREDIT

UNION
DRIVE-THRU

CREDIT
UNIO

N
DRIVE-THRU

ATM
DRIVE-THRU

BY-PASS
LANE

COFFEE
DRIVE-THRU

BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SITE LAYOUT PLAN LEGEND
E:

\N
EW

G
RO

U
N

D\
23

-0
01

72
-0

10
 C

M
E 

FE
DE

RA
L 

CR
ED

IT
 U

N
IO

N
-N

EW
 A

LB
AN

Y\
CA

DD
\D

EL
IV

ER
AB

LE
\Z

LA
YT

 -
 2

3-
00

17
2-

01
0 

- 
10

/3
1/

20
23

 2
:4

2:
44

 P
M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

FIRE TRUCK TURNING
PLAN

C1.02

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT

MONUMENTATION

SITE DATA TABLE

NOTES

APPROVALS:

FIRE TRUCK DETAIL



PROP. BUILDING
FINISHED FLOOR: 1136.00

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU
CREDIT

UNION
DRIVE-THRU

CREDIT
UNIO

N
DRIVE-THRU

ATM
DRIVE-THRU

BY-PASS
LANE

COFFEE
DRIVE-THRU

BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

SITE GRADING PLAN NOTES

SITE GRADING PLAN LEGEND

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
G

RA
D 

- 
23

-0
01

72
-0

10
 -

 1
0/

31
/2

02
3 

2:
42

:5
6 

PM

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

SITE GRADING PLAN

C2.00



BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

PROP. BUILDING
FINISHED FLOOR: 1136.00

RTURTU RTU

COFFEE

DRIVE-THRU
CREDIT

UNION
DRIVE-THRU

CREDIT
UNIO

N
DRIVE-THRU

ATM
DRIVE-THRU

BY-PASS
LANE

COFFEE
DRIVE-THRU

SITE UTILITY PLAN NOTES

SITE UTILITY PLAN LEGEND

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
U

TI
L 

- 
23

-0
01

72
-0

10
 -

 1
0/

31
/2

02
3 

2:
43

:1
1 

PM

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

SITE UTILITY PLAN

C3.00



BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

BEECH CROSSING

SMITH'S MILL ROAD

BE
EC

H
 R

O
AD

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
LS

CP
 -

 2
3-

00
17

2-
01

0 
- 

10
/3

1/
20

23
 2

:4
4:

03
 P

M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN

L1.00

SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN NOTES

SITE LANDSCAPE PLAN LEGEND



PERENNIAL PLANTING PERENNIAL PATTERNSHRUB PLANTINGDECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING

PLANTING BED SPADE CUT EDGING

BUILDING EDGE - ROCK MULCH

PLANT LIST

E:
\N

EW
G

RO
U

N
D\

23
-0

01
72

-0
10

 C
M

E 
FE

DE
RA

L 
CR

ED
IT

 U
N

IO
N

-N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y\

CA
DD

\D
EL

IV
ER

AB
LE

\Z
LS

CP
 -

 2
3-

00
17

2-
01

0 
- 

10
/3

1/
20

23
 2

:4
4:

07
 P

M

SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE
10/31/2023

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

SITE LANDSCAPE DETAILS

L1.01

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS
NEW ALBANY MUNICIPAL CODE

BEECH CROSSING I-PUD REQUIREMENTS











LIGHTING CUT SHEETS

E1.1
SHEET

C
M

E 
C

re
di

t U
ni

on
N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H

JOB NO.
29580-0002

DATE

N
ew

G
ro

un
d 

In
te

rn
at

io
na

l, 
In

c.
15

45
0 

So
ut

h 
O

ut
er

 F
or

ty
 D

riv
e

Su
ite

 3
00

C
he

st
er

fie
ld

, M
O

 6
30

17
Ar

ea
 C

od
e 

63
6 

89
8-

 8
10

0

C
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T

(3
14

) 4
69

-3
73

7
13

8 
W

el
d

o
n

 P
a

r
k

w
a

y Pr
o

je
ct

 N
u

m
be

r
:

St
. L

o
u

is
, M

O
 6

30
43

w
w

w
.G

a
n

d
W

en
g

in
ee

r
in

g
.c

o
m

EN
G
IN
EE
R
IN
G

20
23

-0
30

5.0
0

10/25/2023



PC 26 0121 The Courtyards at Haines Creek Model Home Conditional Use CU-104-2025 1 of 4   

 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Staff Report 
January 21, 2026 Meeting 

  
 

THE COURTYARDS AT HAINES CREEK SUBDIVISION 
LOT 102 MODEL HOME CONDITIONAL USE  

 
 
LOCATION:  5535 Wooster Drive Lot 102 (PID: 222-005486) 
APPLICANT:   Kelly Fankhauser c/o Epcon Haines Creek, LLC 
REQUEST: Conditional Use 
ZONING:   Courtyards at Haines Creek I-PUD Zoning District 
STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 
APPLICATION: CU-104-2025 
 
Review based on: Application materials received December 15, 2025   
Staff report completed by Jay Henderson, Planner I  
 

I. REQUEST  
The applicant requests conditional use approval for a residential model home to be located on 
lot 102 within the Haines Creek subdivision. The model is for the Promenade elevation B home 
type, which is permitted for development in the subdivision. The applicant requests that the 
conditional use be approved until the final phase of the community has been sold out.  
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the zoning change and preliminary development plan for 
the property on June 20, 2021 (ZC-07-2023), and the zoning change was adopted by city 
council on July 18, 2023 (O-84-2023). The Planning Commission approved the final 
development plan for the subdivision on March 5, 2024 (FDP-87-2023). 

 
II. LOCATION 
The Courtyards at Haines Creek subdivision is located at the northwest corner of Jug Street and 
Central College Road. The site comprises 0.31 +/- acres and is situated west of Wooster Drive 
and north of McClellan Drive East. The surrounding uses consist of unincorporated property 
along the western boundary, the subdivision clubhouse to the east, a proposed single-family 
home lot on the north, and a public road to the south.  
 
III. EVALUATION  
General Standards for Conditional Uses (C.O. 1115.03)  
The Planning Commission shall not approve a conditional use unless it shall in each specific 
case, make specific findings of fact directly based on the particular evidence presented to it, that 
support conclusions that such use at the proposed location shall meet all of the following 
requirements: 

(a) The proposed use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives, 
or with any specific objective or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. 

(b) The proposed use will be harmonious with the existing or intended character of the 
general vicinity and that such use will not change the essential character of the same 
area. 

(c) The use will not be hazardous to existing or future neighboring uses. 



PC 26 0121 The Courtyards at Haines Creek Model Home Conditional Use CU-104-2025 2 of 4   

(d) The area will be adequately served by essential public facilities and services such as 
highways, streets, police, and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water 
and sewers, and schools; or that the persons or agencies responsible for the 
establishment of the proposed use shall be able to provide adequately any such services. 

(e) The proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community. 
(f) The proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general 
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors. 

(g) Vehicular approaches to the property shall be so designated as not to create interference 
with traffic on surrounding public streets or roads. 

 
Residential model homes. Per Code, these are newly constructed homes or temporary structures 
placed in a newly constructed subdivision and used by a homebuilder or developer to display 
home styles and lot availability in a subdivision to promote the sale of new housing units. The 
model home may be staffed and furnished. (C.O. 1165.09)   
 
The criteria and the applicability of this application are detailed below (Section 1165.09(a)): 

1.  Appropriate location within the community. 
The proposed model home is located on lot 102, which is designated as a corner lot. Per 
the Courtyards at Haines Creek I-PUD zoning text, corner lots shall have enhanced 
elevations. As shown on the elevations, this criterion is being met with the addition of the 
shutters. The model home is located near the subdivision entrance, accessible from 
Central College Road via McClellan Drive East. The proposed location appears to be 
appropriate as it is easily accessible and identifiable when entering the subdivision. 
Additionally, the home is across from the community clubhouse and accessible by 
sidewalks and a leisure trail.  
 

2.  It is integrated in the existing community with customary exterior residential lighting. 
The home will continue to utilize coach lighting fixtures consistent with the style and 
architectural features present on the approved home elevations.  
 

3.  The use is approved with limited duration. 
The applicant states that they would like to utilize the model home until the phase of the 
development has been sold out. Historically, the Planning Commission has approved 
conditional uses for other model homes within the community for 1-3 years, depending 
on the size of the subdivision. Staff recommend the model home approval shall be 
permitted for two (2) years or until the last lot is sold, and any extension in time is subject 
to review and approval by the Planning Commission (condition #1).  
 

4.  One sign is permitted.  
The applicant proposes installing one ground sign, which is evaluated in the staff report 
below.  
 

5. Shall not be used as a general real estate brokerage office. 
The applicant states that the model home will not be used as a general real estate 
brokerage office.  
 

The Planning Commission is also to consider the following (1165.09 (b)): 
1.  Hours of operation 

The model home will operate Monday through Saturday, from 10:00 am to 6:00 pm, and 
Sunday 12:00 pm to 6:00 pm, which is generally consistent with other model homes that 
have been approved by the Planning Commission.   
 

2.  Number of employees and maximum number of employees at the site at one time. 



PC 26 0121 The Courtyards at Haines Creek Model Home Conditional Use CU-104-2025 3 of 4   

The applicant states that there will be two sales employees at the proposed model home 
in the subdivision.  
 

3.  Provisions for parking for employees and customers 
The applicant states that the model home can accommodate four vehicles off-street, with 
additional parking on-street and at the adjacent clubhouse to the east.  
 

4.  Size, lighting, content and location of signage 
C.O. 1169.10(e) of the city sign code permits one (1) sign not to exceed 6 square feet in 
size and no taller than 4 feet. Model home signs are not permitted to be illuminated and 
must be set back 10 feet from the adjacent street right-of-way. The applicant proposes 
installing a model home sign with the following dimensions. Staff recommends a 
condition of approval that the sign’s location meets the code requirement found in C.O. 
1169.10(e) (condition #2).  

a) Size: 1.75 sq. ft. [meets code]. 
b) Height: 1.5 feet [meets code]. 
c) Location: The location of the sign’s distance is not indicated on the site plan. The 

sign is required to be set back 10 feet from the street right-of-way per C.O. 
1169.10(e).  

d) Lighting: none proposed [meets code].  
 

5.  Landscaping and screening 
The applicant proposes to install landscaping in landscape beds in front of the home. 
Additionally, oak trees and an ornamental tree are situated along the front and side 
property lines, as well as proposed trees and hedges along the side of the home. 

 
IV.    SUMMARY 
The proposed model home is situated in an appropriate location within the community, with 
accessibility from the proposed clubhouse, leisure trail, and sidewalk connections. Additionally, 
the model home meets the zoning text requirements for enhanced elevations for a corner lot 
home. The operational aspects of the model home are consistent with successfully operating 
model homes in other New Albany neighborhoods.  
 
V.    ACTION 
Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 
following motion would be appropriate:  
 
Move to approve application CU-104-2025 with the following conditions, subject to staff 
approval:  
 
1) The model home approval shall be permitted for two (2) years or until the last lot is sold, 

and any extension in time is subject to review and approval by the Planning Commission. 
2) The model home sign location must meet the code requirements found in C.O. 1169.10(e).  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



PC 26 0121 The Courtyards at Haines Creek Model Home Conditional Use CU-104-2025 4 of 4   

 
 
Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: NearMap 



Department Address:       7815 Walton Parkway   ●  New Albany, Ohio 43054 ●  Phone 614.939.2254 

  Mailing Address:         99 West Main Street  ●  P.O. Box 188   ●  New Albany, Ohio 43054 

     Community Development Planning Application 

Site Address  

Parcel Numbers 

Acres  # of lots created 

Choose Application Type Description of Request: 
☐Appeal ☐ Extension Request
☐Certificate of Appropriateness ☐ Variance
☐Conditional Use ☐ Vacation
☐Development Plan
☐Plat
☐Lot Changes
☐Minor Commercial Subdivision
☐Zoning Amendment (Rezoning)
☐Zoning Text Modification

Pr
oj

ec
t I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Site visits to the property by City of New Albany representatives are essential to process this application. 
The Owner/Applicant, as signed below, hereby authorizes Village of New Albany representatives, 
employees and appointed and elected officials to visit, photograph and post a notice on the property 
described in this application. I certify that the information here within and attached to this application is 
true, correct and complete.  

Signature of Owner Date: 
Signature of Applicant Date: 

Applicant Information 
Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Phone Number 

Email 

C
on

ta
ct

s 
Si

gn
at

ur
e 

Su
bm

is
si

on
 Submit planning applications and all required materials via email to planning@newalbanyohio.org 

Paper copies are not required at this time however, 12 paper copies of the entire submission will be required 

ahead of a board hearing date. The planner assigned to your case will inform you when the paper copies need 

to be delivered to our offices. Fee invoices will be issued to you once the application is entered.   

Property Owner Information 
Name 

Address 

City, State, Zip 

Phone Number 

Email 

5535 Wooster Drive, New Albany, Ohio / Lot 102 Per Phase 1 Plat

222-005486

0.31 N/A

Conditional use request for the construction 

and use of a residential model home.

EC New Vision Ohio, LLC Epcon Haines Creek, LLC

Docusign Envelope ID: 2B445759-DCAD-410D-86CB-76850B227207

12/15/2025

12/15/2025

mailto:planning@newalbanyohio.org


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appeal 250.00 
Certificate of Appropriateness 

ARB – single and two family residential 100.00 
ARB – All other residential or commercial 300.00 
ARB - Signage 75.00 

Conditional Use 600.00 
Development Plan – Preliminary PUD or Comprehensive 

Planning fee First 10 acres 750.00 
Each additional 5 acres or part thereof 50.00 / each 

Engineering fee 1-25 lots 155.00 / each 
Minimum fee 1000.00 

Engineering fee 26 – 50 lots 3875.00 
Each additional lot over 26 75.00 / each 

Engineering fee Over 51 lots 5750.00 
Each additional lot over 51 50.00 / each 

Development Plan – Final PUD 
Planning fee First 10 acres 650.00 

Each additional 5 acres or part thereof 50.00 
Engineering fee 1-25 lots

(minimum fee $1,000.00) 155.00 / each 
Engineering fee 26 – 50 lots 3875.00 

Each additional lot over 26 75.00 / each 
Engineering fee Over 51 lots 5750.00 

Each additional lot over 51 50.00 / each 
Development Plan – Non-PUD 300.00 
Development Plan / Text Amendment 600.00 
Plat – Road Preliminary 

Planning fee 350.00 
Engineering fee no lots on either side of street 1.00 / LF 

lots on one side of street .50 / LF 
Minimum fee 1,000.00 

Plat – Road Final 
Planning fee 350.00 
Engineering fee no lots on either side of street 1.00 / LF 

lots on one side of street .50 / LF 
Minimum fee 1,000.00 

Plat – Subdivision Preliminary 
Planning 650.00 

Plus each lot 50.00 / each 
Engineering fee 1-25 lots

(minimum fee $1,000.00) 155.00 / each 
Engineering fee 26 – 50 lots 3875.00 

Each lot over 26 75.00 / each 
Engineering fee Over 51 lots 5750.00 

Each lot over 51 50.00 / each 

Fe
es

 &
 S

ub
m

itt
al

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

 

Docusign Envelope ID: 2B445759-DCAD-410D-86CB-76850B227207



Submittal Information & Fees 

Plat – Subdivision Final 
Planning 650.00 

Plus each lot 15.00 / each 
Engineering fee 1-25 lots

(minimum fee $1,000.00) 155.00 /each 
Engineering fee 26-50 lots 3875.00 

Each lot over 26 75.00 / each 
Engineering fee Over 51 lots 5750.00 

Each lot over 51 50.00 / each 
Lot Changes  200.00 
Minor Commercial Subdivision 200.00 
Vacation (Street or Easement) 1200.00 
Variance 

Non-single family, commercial, subdivision, multiple properties 600.00 
Single Family residence 250.00 
In conjunction with Certification of Appropriateness 100.00 

Extension Request 0.00 

Zoning  
Rezoning - First 10 acres 700.00 

Each additional 5 acres or part thereof 50.00 / each 
Rezoning to Rocky Fork Blacklick Accord 250.00 
Text Modification 600.00 

Easement Encroachment 800.00 

 F
ee

s &
 S

ub
m

itt
al

 R
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
  

Docusign Envelope ID: 2B445759-DCAD-410D-86CB-76850B227207



Department address: 7815 Walton Parkway | New Albany, OH 43054 | Phone (614) 939-2254 
Mailing address: 99 West Main Street | New Albany, OH 43054 | P.O. Box 188 

CONDITIONAL USE SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

Name of Project _____________________________________________________________________ 

Site Address ________________________________________________________________________ 

 Due Date _________________________    Application Number _______________________________ 

Submit planning applications and all required materials to planning staff via planning@newalbanyohio.org. Applicants are 

encouraged to contact planning staff prior to submitting an application to inform the department of the upcoming proposal. 

Applicants may contact staff to schedule a Wednesday review meeting to discuss the project. 

Applications are due via email on Fridays, 30 days ahead of the hearing date. Planning staff will complete a preliminary 
review of your submission one week after it is due. Staff will inform you of any missing information via email and you will be 

given one week to provide updates. Incomplete applications cannot be placed on meeting agendas. The planner assigned to 

your application will inform you when 12 paper copies of the entire submission need to be delivered to our office. Fee 

invoices will be issued to you once your application is entered. 

The following materials are required to be submitted as part of a Conditional Use application per C.O. 1115.02.  Additional

information regarding the property, proposed use, or surrounding area may be requested by staff or the Board/Commission 

to make a determination. 

Submittal requirements checklist 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 

5) 

6) 

7) 

Name, address, and phone number of the applicant. 

Legal description of the property, as recorded in the Franklin County Recorder’s office. 

Description of existing use. 

Present zoning district. 

Description of proposed conditional use. 

A plan of the proposed site showing the location of all: 
Buildings Parking and loading areas Traffic circulation 
Open spaces Landscaping Refuse 
Signs Service areas and utilities  Yards 

The names and addresses of all property owners within 200 feet contiguous to and directly across the 
street from the property, as appearing on the Franklin County Auditor’s current tax list. The applicant 
shall provide the addresses of all property within these boundaries. 

Continue to next page 

(please check one)
Y | N | N/A

Submitted? 

mailto:planning@newalbanyohio.org
https://library.municode.com/oh/new_albany/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTELEVENPLZOCO_TITONEZOAD_CH1115COUS_1115.02APCOUS


City of New Albany | Submittal Requirements Checklist – Conditional Use

Department address: 7815 Walton Parkway | New Albany, OH 43054 | Phone (614) 939-2254 
Mailing address: 99 West Main Street | New Albany, OH 43054 | P.O. Box 188 

8) A narrative statement that includes: 

• An evaluation of the effects on adjoining property

• A discussion of the general compatibility with adjacent and other properties in the district

The narrative statement should also consider the following requirements for approval: 

• The proposed use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives, or

with any specific objective or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance.

• The proposed use will be harmonious with the existing or intended character of the general

vicinity and that such use will not change the essential character of the same area.

• The use will not be hazardous to existing or future neighboring uses.

• The area will be adequately served by essential public facilities and services such as highways,

streets, police, and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewers, and

schools; or that the persons or agencies responsible for the establishment of the proposed use

shall be able to provide adequately any such services.

• The proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

• The proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare

by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.

• Vehicular approaches to the property shall be so designated as not to create interference with

traffic on surrounding public streets or roads.

Other requested materials / notes: 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________________________

________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________



 

 

MEMO

Date:  December 15, 2025 

To: City of New Albany Planning Commission 

From: Epcon Communities  

Subject: Conditional Use Application – The Courtyards at Haines Creek Residential Model Home 

  

 
Responses to the Conditional Use Application Submittal Requirements  

 
1. Name, address and telephone number  

• This is provided on the Community Development Planning Application. 
 

2. Legal description of the property 
• The Courtyards at Haines Creek Phase 1 Plat is attached which serves as the property legal 

description. 
 

3. Description of existing use  
• The site is an active construction site for an Approved Residential Subdivision. 

 
4. Present zoning district 

•  I-PUD – Infill Planned Unit Development. 
 

5. Description of the proposed conditional use 
• The proposed conditional use is a residential model home, landscaping and signage. 

 
6. A plan of the proposed site  

• Various plans are provided with the application which contain an overall development plan 
showing model location, plot plan, landscaping plans for the home and its courtyard and 
signage. 

 
7. Names and Addresses of all Property Owners within 200 feet of the proposed conditional use: 

• There is one adjacent property owner within 200 feet of the Courtyards at Haines Creek. 
The remainder of the lots within 200 feet are contained within the Courtyards at Haines 
Creek Development. These lots are under construction, have not been sold and are still 
under the ownership of Epcon Haines Creek, LLC. 
 

• Adjoining Property Owner within 200 feet: 
 Ronald H and Tamara L Davies 

8200 Central College Road 
New Albany, Ohio 43054 
PID- 222-001998-00 



   
 

 
 
 
 

Epcon Communities | Page 2 of 2 
 

8. Narrative Statement: 
 

• Effects on the Adjoining Property: 
 The proposed residential model home is located at 5535 Wooster Drive on Lot 102 in 

the Courtyards at Haines Creek. The model is located close to the development entrance 
along Central College Road.  Parking for four vehicles can be accommodated in the 
driveway of the model home with additional parking available on-street and in the 
adjacent clubhouse parking lot across Wooster Drive to the east. The proposed 
residential model home has the rear yard adjoining a 30 foot Tree Preservation Zone 
that separates it from the adjacent Davies Property. 

 Due to the nature of the use, there will be minimal noise and lights from the residential 
model home. Anticipated hours of use are: 

Monday – Saturday: 10:00 AM – 6:00 PM 
Sunday: 12:00 PM – 6:00 PM 

 There will be two salespeople in the model home daily. 
 The duration of the model home use is proposed until the final phase of the development 

is sold out. 
 No dedicated outdoor trash receptacle is required for the proposed use. The volume of 

waste generated by the sales staff is minimal. All trash will be either disposed of in the 
onsite dumpster or removed from the premises by staff as needed.  
 

• A discussion of the compatibility with adjacent and other properties within the district: 
 The proposed use will be harmonious with and in accordance with the general objectives 

or with any specific objective or purpose of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 The residential model home is a compatible use with the proposed and existing homes. 

It has a rear setback that is deed restricted with no activity and an additional 30-foot 
tree  preservation zone between the lot and the adjoining property.  Once the model 
home use is no longer needed, the home will be sold and become an owner occupied 
home once the model is no longer needed.  

 Since the model is an actual model of a home being sold and built in the community, the 
proposed use will be harmonious with the existing and intended character of the general 
vicinity and will not change the essential character of the same area. 

 The use will not be hazardous to existing and future neighboring uses. 
 The Courtyards at Haines Creek is adequately served by essential public facilities and 

services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.  
 The proposed use will not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, equipment and 

conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general 
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, noise and 
glare. The proposed use has limited hours of use, which is more restrictive that any  
residential home within the development which has no restrictions on as an hourly 
restriction on coming and going for the owner or their visitors, etc. 

 Vehicular approaches to the property and the proposed use on Lot 1will not interfere 
with traffic on surrounding public streets or roads. In fact public street access to Lot 1  
and the overall public street system of the  Courtyards at Haines Creek Development 
has been approved by the City of New Albany. These public streets are completed or 
under construction. 
 
 

 



CEDARVILLE                      DRIVE

FINDLAY                     DRIVE

H
A

IN
ES

   
C

R
EE

K
   

D
R

IV
E

W
O

O
ST

ER
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 D

R
IV

E

LO
U

R
D

ES
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 D

R
IV

E

C
EN

TR
A

L 
C

O
LL

EG
E 

R
O

A
D

CENTRAL COLLEGE ROAD

ANTIOCH DRIVE

~

HIRAM
LANE

~

Residential Model
Home Location
(Lot 102)

JUG   STREET
     ROAD

C
EN

TR
A

L
C

O
LL

EG
E

R
O

A
D

CL

C L

3
2

THE COURTYARDS AT HAINES CREEK
PHASE 1



C
EN

TR
A

L 
C

O
LL

EG
E 

RO
A

D

JU
G

 S
TR

EE
T

20' BUILDING SETBACK

15' REAR SETBACK

15' REAR SETBACK

15' BUILDING SETBACK

20' BUILDING SETBACK

20' BUILDING SETBACK

20' BUILDING SETBACK

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

20' BUILDING SETBACK 20' BUILDING SETBACK

20' BUILDING SETBACK

20' BUILDING SETBACK

10
0'

 S
ET

BA
C

K 
FR

O
M

 R
/W

100' SETBACK FROM R/W

EXISTING BASIN
(OFF-SITE)

50' REAR SETBACK

PAUL K. STAMM
CHRISTINE BURIK STAMM

1.257 AC. (DEED)
I.N. 200309120291097

PID: 222-002162

ALBERT J. MCROBERTS III
DIANA J. MCROBERTS

O.R. 243, P. 106
PID: 037-112086-05.002

RONALD H. DAVIES
TAMARA L. DAVIES
10.664 AC. (DEED)

I.N. 201211020166943
PID: 220-001998

JOHN HWANG
SUAH HWANG

6.526 AC. (DEED)
I.N. 202009110135579

PID: 222-002157

RICHARD EUGENE ULERY
DEBBIE LEE ULERY
5.072 AC. (DEED)
O.R. 27800C14
PID: 222-002164

MICHAEL HAIRSTON
1.257 AC. (DEED)

I.N. 202208290123903
PID: 222-002160

PEGGY J. CORWIN
5.033 AC. (DEED)

I.N. 200402110030535
PID: 222-002163

JEAN SMYTHE TRUSTEE OF THE
JEAN SMYTHE REVOCABLE TRUST

1.257 AC. (DEED)
I.N. 200909160134683

PID: 222-002161

 DOUGLAS W. READER
CHRISTINE M. READER

5.002 AC. (DEED)
I.N. 201005070056606

PID: 220-001985

D
A

V
ID

 R
. J

O
N

ES
5.

26
3 

A
C

. (
D

EE
D

)
I.N

. 2
00

50
51

70
09

39
52

I.N
. 2

01
21

01
20

15
37

93
PI

D
: 2

20
-0

02
21

0

JO
HN

 E
. S

A
V

ES
O

N
 T

RU
ST

EE
5.

26
3 

A
C

. (
D

EE
D

)
I.N

. 2
00

01
20

70
24

81
15

PI
D

: 2
20

-0
00

23
5

8400 CENTRAL COLLEGE
ROAD PROPCO LLC
109.033 AC. (DEED)

I.N. 202012290035810
PID: 038-113376-00.001

SAVESON ACRES
RESERVE "B"

P.B. 16, P. 137

SAVESON ACRES
HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION

I.N. 200501200002102
PID: 037-111654-00.000

LISA A. MASON
PAUL M. MASON

I.N. 201712070172461
PID: 222-002179

RANDELL D. CONLEY
STACY B. CONLEY

I.N. 201704210053830
PID: 222-002178

JONATHAN P. SINGO JR.
PRECIOUS M. SINGO
I.N. 201611040152667

PID: 222-002177

JAMIE D. WALKER
LISA S. TSEN

I.N. 201009230124154
PID: 222-002176

WHITNEY L. PAGANI
I.N. 201609300132886

PID: 222-002180

C
A

TH
ER

IN
E 

J.
 S

A
V

ES
O

N
RI

C
HA

RD
 W

. O
TT

EN
, J

R.
5.

26
3 

A
C

. (
D

EE
D

)
I.N

. 2
00

20
30

10
05

51
49

PI
D

: 2
20

-0
02

21
1

JO
HN

 E
. S

A
V

ES
O

N
 T

RU
ST

EE
5.

26
3 

A
C

. (
D

EE
D

)
I.N

. 2
00

01
20

70
24

81
15

PI
D

: 2
20

-0
00

23
5

 DOUGLAS & SHAWNMARIE
LAMBERT

5.654 AC. (DEED)
PID: 220-002232

20
' B

UI
LD

IN
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

1011

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

2021

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

3031

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

4041

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50
51

52

53

54

55

56

57

58

59

60
61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71

72

737475767778798081828384858687

88 89 90 91 92 93 94 95 96 97 98 99 100 101

102103104105106107108113114115116117118119120121122123124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146

147148149150151

152

153

154

155

EASEMENTEASEMENTEASEMENTEASEMENT

EXISTING
STREAM

EXISTING
STREAM

EXISTING
STREAM

8' 
LE

ISU
RE

 TR
AI

L

8' LEISURE TRAIL

1' 
EA

SE
M

EN
T

100' SCPZ

100' SCPZ

8' LEISURE TRAIL

8' LEISURE TRAIL

8' LEISURE TRAIL

4.5' FENCE
ENCROACHMENT

4.5' FENCE
ENCROACHMENT FU

TU
RE

 T
UR

N
 L

A
N

E
W

ID
EN

IN
G

FU
TU

RE
 R

UR
A

L 
C

O
RR

ID
O

R
IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
TS

HAINES CREEK DRIVEHAINES CREEK DRIVE

LOURDES DRIVE

LOURDES DRIVE

D
EF

IA
N

C
E 

D
RI

V
E

HE
ID

EL
BE

RG
 D

RI
V

E

M
A

RI
ET

TA
 D

RI
V

E

FI
N

D
LA

Y 
D

RI
V

E

C
ED

A
RV

IL
LE

 D
RI

V
E

WOOSTER DRIVE

HE
ID

EL
BE

RG
 D

R

WOOSTER DRIVE

HIRAM LANE

FU
T 

ST
RE

ET
EX

TE
N

SI
O

N

McCLELLAN
DRIVE EAST

RESERVE "I"
OPEN SPACE
±0.14 ACRES

RESERVE "K"
OPEN SPACE
±0.14 ACRES

FU
T 

ST
RE

ET
EX

TE
N

SI
O

N

20
0'

20
0'

GRAPHIC SCALE
0 50 100 200

1 inch = 100 feet

PHASE 1
46 PLOTS

Phase 2
56 PLOTS

Phase 3
49 PLOTS

PHASE 1 LINE

Phase 2

Phase 3

Ph
as

e 
1

Ph
as

e 
2

Ph
as

e 
2

Ph
as

e 
1

Ph
as

e 
3

Ph
as

e 
2

20230578

C
L

IE
N

T
 N

A
M

E

DATE

R
E

V
IS

IO
N

S
D

A
T

E
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
M

A
R

K

SCALE

JOB NO.

SHEET

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
N

E
W

 A
L

B
A

N
Y

, F
R

A
N

K
L

IN
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, O

H
IO

C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 U

SE
 P

L
A

N
FO

R

T
H

E
 C

O
U

R
T

Y
A

R
D

S 
A

T
 H

A
IN

E
S

C
R

E
E

K
R

E
SI

D
E

N
T

IA
L

 M
O

D
E

L
 H

O
M

E
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

AS NOTED

● 
  

● 
  

● 
  

Ev
an

s, 
Me

ch
wa

rt, 
Ha

m
ble

to
n &

 Ti
lto

n, 
Inc

.
En

gi
ne

er
s 

   
  S

ur
ve

yo
rs

   
   

Pl
an

ne
rs

   
   

Sc
ie

nt
is

ts
55

00
 N

ew
 A

lb
an

y 
Ro

ad
, C

ol
um

bu
s,

 O
H

 4
30

54
Phone: 614.775.4500   

Toll Free: 888.775.3648 emht.com

3/3

DECEMBER 15, 2025





SUBDIVISION

SIGN DATE:

DRAFTER:

HOUSE STYLE:

CLIENT NAME:

PO NUMBER:

FEMA FIRM INFORMATION:

LANDMARK SURVEY GROUP
AN EXACTA COMPANY 

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATION:
WE HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE 
FOREGOING PLOT PLAN WAS PREPARED 
FROM INFORMATION PROVIDED BY THE 
CLIENT AND DATA OBTAINED FROM 
ENGINEERED SUBDIVISION PLANS. THIS 
PLOT PLAN IS TO BE USED BY THE CLIENT 
FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING A 
BUILDING PERMIT. THE USE OF THE PLOT 
PLAN FOR ANY OTHER USE IS STRICTLY 
PROHIBITED.

JOB NUMBERCOUNTY

LOT #

SITE ADDRESS

NOTES:

CITY/TOWNSHIP PAGEBOOK

STATE

EPCON COMMUNITIES

CHC1-102-PPR

102 COURTYARDS AT HAINES CREEK PH 1 (1-30,68-74,100-108)

132 607

FRANKLIN

PROMENADE COTTAGE W. BONUS SUITE / B 10/24/25

5535 WOOSTER DRIVE NEW ALBANY

OHIO

PLOT PLAN

FLOOD ZONE X 39049C 0207K 06/17/2008.

A.P.

WESLEY B. HAAS 8803

*Model Sign 
(Approximate 
Location)

kkrueger
Typewritten Text
Courtyards at Haines Creek 
Residential Model Home: Lot 102
Conditional Use 
12-15-25

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

Jeff Sampson
Line



New Albany Summer Cottage- The Courtyards at Haines Creek

Material List and Color Palette

Model Lot 102

SC-1

Material Manufacturer Color Name Code

Shingle Certainteed Moire Black

Windows Pella Black

Garage Door Wayne Dalton - Steel 9100 Series White

Primary Siding- James Hardie Board & Batten Sherwin Williams Needlepoint Navy SW0032

Siding Accent Areas - James Hardie Board & Batten Sherwin Williams Classic Light Buff SW0050

Front Door Sherwin Williams Dutch Tile Blue SW0031

Trim & Fypon Accents Sherwin Williams Classic Light Buff SW0050

Gutters & Downspouts Union Corrugating Company White

Metal Roofs Union Corrugating Company Black

Aluminium Fencing 4' Tall - Front & Sides Black

Vinyl Fencing USA Vinyl - 6' Privacy White



Epcon Columbus
500 Stonehenge Pkwy

Dublin, OH, 43017

ISSUE DESCRIPTION DATE

01 BUILDER SET 9/22/2025

PROJECT

PLAN: D-4 Promenade (2023)

ELEV: Elevation B

LOT: 102

LOT ADDRESS: 5535 WOOSTER DR                         
NEW ALBANY, OH 43054

DRAWING TITLE

FRONT / BACK
ELEVATION

SHEET NUMBER

A-200

© 2025 HIGHARC, INC

9'-
1 1

/8"
9'-

1 1
/8"

8'-
1 1

/8"
8'-

1 1
/8"

T.O. PLATET.O. PLATE

9'-1 ⅛"9'-1 ⅛"

T.O. PLATET.O. PLATE

8'-1 ⅛"8'-1 ⅛"

T.O. FIRST FLRT.O. FIRST FLR

0"0"

T.O. SECOND FLRT.O. SECOND FLR

10'-3 ⅛"10'-3 ⅛"

T.O. ROOFT.O. ROOF

23'-2"23'-2"

88

1212

88

1212

5/4X8 FRIEZE TRIM5/4X8 FRIEZE TRIM 2X8 TRIM w/ 2" O.H. TYP2X8 TRIM w/ 2" O.H. TYP

5/4X6 TRIM5/4X6 TRIM

10"X10" BUILT-UP COLUMN w/ 1X4 CAP TRIM & 1X6 BASE TRIM TYP10"X10" BUILT-UP COLUMN w/ 1X4 CAP TRIM & 1X6 BASE TRIM TYP

5/4X4 FRIEZE TRIM5/4X4 FRIEZE TRIM

5/4X4 RAKE TRIM5/4X4 RAKE TRIM

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

2X6 TRIM w/ 2" O.H.2X6 TRIM w/ 2" O.H.

5/4X4 CORNER TRIM TYP5/4X4 CORNER TRIM TYP

5/4X AZEK TRIM DOWN TO GRADE - SEE DETAIL5/4X AZEK TRIM DOWN TO GRADE - SEE DETAIL

5/4X TRIM5/4X TRIM

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM5/4X4 TRIM

2-5/2-5 FX2-5/2-5 FX

ADDRESS, 5'-5" A.F.F.ADDRESS, 5'-5" A.F.F.

EXTERIOR LIGHT, 6'-7" A.F.F. TYPEXTERIOR LIGHT, 6'-7" A.F.F. TYP

ALUMINUM CLAD WOODALUMINUM CLAD WOOD
RAKE EXTENSIONRAKE EXTENSION

NOTESNOTES

1. HINGES & SHUTTER DOGS REQUIRED FOR ALL1. HINGES & SHUTTER DOGS REQUIRED FOR ALL
SHUTTERS.SHUTTERS.

2. WINDOWS REQUIRED TO HAVE SIMULATED2. WINDOWS REQUIRED TO HAVE SIMULATED
DIVIDED LITES.DIVIDED LITES.

BOARD & BATTEN SIDINGBOARD & BATTEN SIDING

MATERIAL LEGENDMATERIAL LEGEND

5/4X6 TRIM5/4X6 TRIM

9'-
1 1

/8"
9'-

1 1
/8"

8'-
1 1

/8"
8'-

1 1
/8"

T.O. PLATET.O. PLATE

9'-1 ⅛"9'-1 ⅛"

T.O. PLATET.O. PLATE

8'-1 ⅛"8'-1 ⅛"

T.O. FIRST FLRT.O. FIRST FLR

0"0"

T.O. SECOND FLRT.O. SECOND FLR

10'-3 ⅛"10'-3 ⅛"

T.O. ROOFT.O. ROOF

23'-2"23'-2"
88

1212

88

1212

88

1212

5/4X AZEK TRIM DOWN TO GRADE - SEE DETAIL5/4X AZEK TRIM DOWN TO GRADE - SEE DETAIL

5/4X8 FRIEZE TRIM5/4X8 FRIEZE TRIM

5/4X4 CORNER TRIM TYP5/4X4 CORNER TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

1/4" = 1'-0" @ 22" x 34"

FRONT ELEV1

A-200

1/4" = 1'-0" @ 22" x 34"

BACK ELEV2

A-200

PERMIT & CONST. SET

kkrueger
Typewritten Text
Courtyards at Haines Creek
Residential Model Home: Lot 102
Conditional Use 


kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text
12-15-25

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text



Epcon Columbus
500 Stonehenge Pkwy

Dublin, OH, 43017

ISSUE DESCRIPTION DATE

01 BUILDER SET 9/22/2025

PROJECT

PLAN: D-4 Promenade (2023)

ELEV: Elevation B

LOT: 102

LOT ADDRESS: 5535 WOOSTER DR                         
NEW ALBANY, OH 43054

DRAWING TITLE

LEFT / RIGHT
ELEVATION

SHEET NUMBER

A-201

© 2025 HIGHARC, INC

9'-
1 1

/8"
9'-

1 1
/8"

8'-
1 1

/8"
8'-

1 1
/8"

T.O. PLATET.O. PLATE

9'-1 ⅛"9'-1 ⅛"

T.O. PLATET.O. PLATE

8'-1 ⅛"8'-1 ⅛"

T.O. FIRST FLRT.O. FIRST FLR

0"0"

T.O. SECOND FLRT.O. SECOND FLR

10'-3 ⅛"10'-3 ⅛"

T.O. ROOFT.O. ROOF

23'-2"23'-2"1010

1212

1010

1212

88

1212

88

1212

88

1212

44
1212

5/4X6 TRIM5/4X6 TRIM

5/4X8 TRIM TYP5/4X8 TRIM TYP

5/4X AZEK TRIM DOWN TO GRADE - SEE DETAIL5/4X AZEK TRIM DOWN TO GRADE - SEE DETAIL

5/4X4 RAKE TRIM5/4X4 RAKE TRIM

10"X10" BUILT-UP COLUMN w/ 1X4 CAP TRIM & 1X6 BASE TRIM TYP10"X10" BUILT-UP COLUMN w/ 1X4 CAP TRIM & 1X6 BASE TRIM TYP

5/4X8 FRIEZE TRIM5/4X8 FRIEZE TRIM

5/4X4 CORNER TRIM TYP5/4X4 CORNER TRIM TYP

2X8 TRIM w/ 2" O.H. TYP2X8 TRIM w/ 2" O.H. TYP

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X  RAKE TRIM5/4X  RAKE TRIM

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM5/4X4 TRIM

EXTERIOR LIGHT, 6'-7" A.F.F. TYPEXTERIOR LIGHT, 6'-7" A.F.F. TYP

ALUMINUM CLAD WOODALUMINUM CLAD WOOD
RAKE EXTENSIONRAKE EXTENSION

NOTESNOTES

1. HINGES & SHUTTER DOGS REQUIRED FOR ALL1. HINGES & SHUTTER DOGS REQUIRED FOR ALL
SHUTTERS.SHUTTERS.

2. WINDOWS REQUIRED TO HAVE SIMULATED2. WINDOWS REQUIRED TO HAVE SIMULATED
DIVIDED LITES.DIVIDED LITES.

BOARD & BATTEN SIDINGBOARD & BATTEN SIDING

MATERIAL LEGENDMATERIAL LEGEND

6'-
8"

6'-
8"

9'-
1 1

/8"
9'-

1 1
/8"

8'-
1 1

/8"
8'-

1 1
/8"

T.O. PLATET.O. PLATE

9'-1 ⅛"9'-1 ⅛"

T.O. PLATET.O. PLATE

8'-1 ⅛"8'-1 ⅛"

T.O. FIRST FLRT.O. FIRST FLR

0"0"

T.O. SECOND FLRT.O. SECOND FLR

10'-3 ⅛"10'-3 ⅛"

T.O. ROOFT.O. ROOF

23'-2"23'-2"1010

1212

1010

1212

88

121244
1212

5/4X8 FRIEZE TRIM5/4X8 FRIEZE TRIM
5/4X6 TRIM5/4X6 TRIM

5/4X AZEK TRIM DOWN TO GRADE - SEE DETAIL5/4X AZEK TRIM DOWN TO GRADE - SEE DETAIL

5/4X4 RAKE TRIM5/4X4 RAKE TRIM

10"X10" BUILT-UP COLUMN w/ 1X4 CAP TRIM & 1X6 BASE TRIM TYP10"X10" BUILT-UP COLUMN w/ 1X4 CAP TRIM & 1X6 BASE TRIM TYP
5/4X4 TRIM 5/4X4 TRIM 

5/4X4 CORNER TRIM TYP5/4X4 CORNER TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM5/4X4 TRIM

5/4X4 TRIM5/4X4 TRIM

5/4X  RAKE TRIM5/4X  RAKE TRIM

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

5/4X4 TRIM TYP5/4X4 TRIM TYP

2X8 TRIM w/ 2" O.H. TYP2X8 TRIM w/ 2" O.H. TYP

2-4/4-4 FAUX SHUTTER - CENTER ON GABLE2-4/4-4 FAUX SHUTTER - CENTER ON GABLE

EXTERIOR LIGHT, 6'-7" A.F.F. TYPEXTERIOR LIGHT, 6'-7" A.F.F. TYP

ALUMINUM CLAD WOODALUMINUM CLAD WOOD
RAKE EXTENSIONRAKE EXTENSION

1/4" = 1'-0" @ 22" x 34"

LEFT ELEV1

A-201

1/4" = 1'-0" @ 22" x 34"

RIGHT ELEV2

A-201

PERMIT & CONST. SET

4

4

kkrueger
Typewritten Text
12-15-25

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text
Courtyards at Haines Creek
Residential Model Home: Lot 102
Conditional Use 

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text



Residence

DriveWalk

8 - LITTLE LIME HYDRANGEA #3

3 - COLUMNAR HORNBEAM 2.5"

9 - HICKS YEW #5

1 - HIBISCUS #3

4 - PURPLE PALACE CORAL BELLS #1
3 - DRIFT ROSE #3

1 - DWARF ALBERTA SPRUCE 24" HT

1 - LITTLE HENRY ITEA #3

1 - DWARF BURNING BUSH #3

3 - GREEN VELVET BOXWOOD #3

1 - CRABAPPLE 2"

1 - LITTLE HENRY ITEA #3

1 - ESPRESSO KENTUCKY COFFEE TREE 2.5"

3 - SCARLET OAK 2.5"

LANDSCAPE PLAN
SCALE: 1" = 20'

20 0

NORTH

20

GRAPHIC SCALE (IN FEET)

40

Scale:

Drawn By:

Drawing Number:

Date:

11/05/2025

1"=20'

AV

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
Pl

an
 f

or
 E

pc
on

 C
om

m
un

it
ie

s

H
ai

ne
s 

Cr
ee

k 
Lo

t 
10

2
55

35
 W

oo
st

er
 D

r.
 N

ew
 A

lb
an

y,
 O

H
.

kkrueger
Typewritten Text
Courtyards at Haines Creek
Residential Model Home: Lot 102
Conditional Use 


kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text
12-15-25

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text



kkrueger
Typewritten Text
12-15-25

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text
Courtyards at Haines Creek
Residential Model Home: Lot 102
Conditional Use


kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text

kkrueger
Typewritten Text


	Agenda - January 21, 2026
	Minutes - December 15, 2025
	ZC-80-2025 PT Fire Station
	FDP-88-2025 Food Pantry
	VAR-98-2025 Armscote End Pool Setback
	FDP-97-2025 CME Credit Union
	CU-104-2025Courtyard Model Home CU

	Site Address: TBD - Refer to Proposed Lot Split Exhibit; was previously 7270 New Albany-Condit Rd, New Albany, OH 43054
	Parcel Numbers: TBD - Refer to Proposed Lot Split Exhibit; the proposed lot consists of a portion of 222-005258 & 222-005259
	Acres: Approx. 5.81
	of lots created: 1
	Choose Application Type: 
	Appeal: Off
	Certificate of Appropriateness: Off
	Conditional Use: Off
	Development Plan: Off
	Plat: Off
	Lot Changes: Off
	Minor Commercial Subdivision: Off
	Zoning Amendment Rezoning: On
	Zoning Text Modification: Off
	Extension Request: Off
	Variance: Off
	Vacation: Off
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification: Revise zoning classification from I-PUD to CF.
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification_2: Note:
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification_3: The current property owner is the New Albany
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification_4: Company, LLC. Consent has been given by
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification_5: the aforementioned entity to authorize
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification_6: Plain Township to act as the property owner for
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification_7: this and future submissions. Refer to attached
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification_8: letter of consent.
	Description of RequestAppeal Extension Request Certificate of Appropriateness Variance Conditional Use Vacation Development Plan Plat Lot Changes Minor Commercial Subdivision Zoning Amendment Rezoning Zoning Text Modification_9: 
	Name: Nathan Gammella on behalf of Schorr Architects
	Name_2: Ben Collins on behalf of Plain Township
	undefined: 
	Date: 11/20/25
	Date_2: 11/20/25
	Check Box13: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	0: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off

	1: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off

	2: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off

	3: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off

	4: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off

	5: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off

	6: 
	0: Yes
	1: Off
	2: Off






	Text1: The Courtyards at Haines Creek Residential Model Home 
	Text2: 5535 Wooster Drive, New Albany, Ohio / Lot 102 Per Phase 1 Plat
	Text3: December 19, 2025
	Text5: 
	Check Box14: Yes
	Check Box16: Off
	Check Box15: Off
	Text4: 


